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e're long past being just a newspaper or broadcast television company.
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(in mifions, except per share amounts) S\\ v /9,/
Dec. 31, Dec. 25, %
For Fiscal Years Ended 2006 2005 Change
Revenues $ 9832 $ 8764 12.2
Operating cash flow 2128 1856 14.5
Depreciation and amortization 711 62.0 14.7
Operating income 141.5 123.6 14.5
Incorme from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle s 654 & 811 (19.4)
Discontinued operations 13.6 1.3 -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle - (325.4) -
Net income {loss) 79.0 (243.0}
Stockholders' equity 937.4 215.8 2.4
Total assets 2,505.2 1,975.4 26.8
Average shares outstanding - assurming
dilution 23.8 23.9 (0.4)
Earnings (loss) per share — assuming
dilution:

Income from continuing operations

before cumuiative efiect of change

in accounting principle $ 275 $ 340 (19.1)

Income from discontinued operations Q.57 0.05 -

Gumulative effect of change in

accounting principle - (13.83) -

Net income (l05s) 3.32 (10.18) -
Dividends per share 0.88 0.84 4.8
Stockholders' equity per share 38.87 38.08 2.1
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We are generating
audience and revenue
growth by capitalizing
on the strength of the

growing markets in
which we operate
and by executing our
key internal initiatives.

Marshall N. Morton, President and Chief Executive Officer, and J. Stewart Bryan Ill, Chairman.

10 our shareholders:

Media General moved forward on
multiple fronts in 2006 as we continued
to execute our growth strategy. We
enhanced our internet presence in all
markets, strengthened our traditional
newspapers and television stations, and
launched a variety of new products.
Growing Internet Presence
Qur Web sites provide excellent content
on the subjects visitors seek most from
us ~ local news. weather, sports, traffic
and entertainment. We have harngssed
the Intemet to deliver news and infor-
mation with speed and convenience fo
reach consumers on the go.
Increasingly, our online content in-
cludes the use of video. Additionally, our
Web sites provide a vibrant marketplace
for buyers and sellers. Online reveriue
growth in 2006 was 33%.

Visitors to our Web sitas find multiple
opportunities to interact with us and with
each other. This interactivity happens
through reader discussions and blogs
and from users posting their favorite
photos to share with others. Upon re-
quest, we e-mail headlines at scheduled
intervals throughout the day and issue
breaking news alerts. Our users also
Gan choose to receive e-mail alerts on
particular topics that interest them. We
provide the same options for text mes-
saging mobile devices,

Increasing Newspaper Readership
Qur newspapers are focused on new
ways to retain existing readers and at-
tract new ones. Their strategies inclucle
a commitment to local content and the
use of compelling graphics. Qur news-
papers also have become more aggres-




sive in their use of audience research
and branding campaigns. Inh 2008,
several Media General newspapers
generated circulation growth.

Top-Rated Television Stations
Most of cur broadcast television stations
- 17 out of 23 - are ranked number ong
or two in their markets on a sign-on to
sign-off household basis. A significant
contributor to this success is our com-
mitment to viewer research, which helps
us understand what content our audi-
ence finds most relevant.

Four New NBC Stations

We substantially strengthened our
Broadcast Division in 2006 with the
purchase of four NBC television stations
in strang and growing markets. This
acquisition changed our industry profile
in a significant way as three of these sta-
tions are in top 50 markets.

We also divested four CBS stations,
inciuding one in Kansas and one in
lowa. These sales allowed us to mon-
etize non-core assets and redeploy the
proceeds toward the acquisition.

We enhanced our Southeast footprint
by entering the fast-growing Raleigh-
Durham, North Carolina, market, the
26th largest in the country. We upgrad-
ed our presence in Birmingham, Ala-
bama, by buying a staticn that reaches
more households than the cne we sold.

We also acquired two exceptional
gtations - one in Columbus, Chio, and
one in Providence, Rhode Island. Both
of these stations hold very strong market
positions and generate significant Politi-
cal revenues in election years. They both
produce well-above-average cash flow.

This acquisition will significantly im-
prove our broadcast cash flow margin.
it also will strengthen Media General
overall by balancing the profit contribu-
tion of our Publishing and Broadcast
segments, from approximately 60%
Publishing to a nearly 50% split.

We have conservatively estimated
operating synergies of $3 million annu-
ally by 2008 for the new NBC stations.

The synergies will come from enhanced
revenues, which are expected to result
from the implementation of Media
General's sales training and systerns as
well as our inventory management and
pricing processes. Cost reductions will
resutt from bringing the new stations into
Media General’'s Central Traffic Opera-
tion and from centralizing Master Control
for all of our NBG stations.

By the end of 2006, the new stations
were almost completely integrated into
our processes and operations. We are
enthusiastic about their potential and the
many ways they can help us grow.

New Products
The year 2006 started off strongly but
as it progressed, advertising began to
soften unexpectedly in some categories,
such as Classified. We responded to
this changing markeiplace and imple-
mented revised marketing plans, includ-
ing accelerating the introduction of new
products.

Introducing new products and
services to meet targeted audience
needs is an important part of our growth
strategy. This focus helps us evolve
with changing customer needs and op-
portunities.

QOur goal is to derive 5% of total
revenues, profitably, from new products
and services. Revenues generated in
2006 from these products and services
exceeded that goal. New products are
generating increased awareness in the
marketplace and linking advertisers with
readers in ways that benefit both.

Media General is long past being
just a newspaper or broadcast television
company. Today, approximately 10% of
our revenues are generated from a vari-
ety of sources otner than our traditional
products.

Consolidated Financial Results
Aided by an additional week in fiscal
20086, incorme from continuing opera-
tions increased 6% over 2005, after
adjusting for non-recurring items in both
years. This performance was driven

Key internal initiatives:

= Creating a dynamic
Internet presence in
all markets

» |ntroducing innovative
products that will
attract new readers,
viewers and users

® Enhancing our
traditional newspapers
and TV stations

» Building sophisticated
sales training and new
revenue development
tools




Our Web sites have
generated significant
audience and revenue

growth.

Online Audience Growth
Page viaws, in millions

800

Online Revenue Growth
£ In millons

30

primarily by strong Broadcast Division
growth. Also contributing to the profit
increase was a nine-fold increase in
equity income from our investrnent in SP
Newsprint, which rose to $10.5 million.
These positive contributions more than
offset higher acquisition-relateg increas-
es in interest expense and intangibles
amortization.

Stock option expense of $5.6 million
pretax, or 15 cents per share, was re-
corded for the first time in 20086, Exclug-
ing this non-cash expense, adjusted in-
come from continuing operations would
have exceeded 2005 by nearly 12%,

Total revenues in 2006 grew more
than 12% to $983.2 miflion. This
amount included the benefit of our four
new NBC stations and 53 weeks in fiscal
2006 compared with 52 weeks in 2005.
The additional week in 2008 contributed
an estimated $18.5 million of revenues,
including the new NBC stations.

Consolidated operating cash flow
totaled $212.6 million, up 14.5%, from
& year ago. Our cash flow margin was
22%, up from last year's 219%,

Capital expenditures in 2006 totaled
$94 miltion. These investments will pro-
vide operating efficiencies and new rev-
enue opportunities in the years ahead.

Total debt at the end of 2008 was
$916 million, an increase from 2005 that
reflects our NBC station acquisition.

A more detailed review of our
financial performance is confained in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
section of this Annual Report.

Publishing Division Results
The Publishing Division aggressively
pursued new revenue development op-
portunities in 2008, helping drive news-
paper advertising growth of 3.2%.

Despite advertising softness, total
revenues exceeded $600 million for the
first time in the division's history. With
the exception of National advertising,
which finished the year down, all major
advertising categories finished the year
up from 2005.

More than 100 new products were
faunched, which was a principal driver of
growth in the Retail category. Classified
advertising revenue growth was tepid
compared to recent years. Following
a deceleration in new job growth in the
U.S. that began in early 2006, Classified
empioyment advertising softened. Au-
tomotive Classified advertising also was
weak for the second year in a row. Real
estate Classified advertising reflected the
cooling in the nation's housing market
and slowed in the latter part of 20086,
compared to the robust growth the cat-
egory had shown earlier in the year.

While total revenue rose 2.3%,
Publishing Division profit dectined for the
year, due to a 4.9% increase in operat-
ing expenses, refiecting higher newsprint
Costs, among others.

Broadcast Division Results
Broadcast Division profits for the year
soared 53%, reflecting the berefit of the
new NBC stations, exceptionally strong
Political advertising and the Winter
Olympics on aur NBC stations. Tota)
revenues rose 32.5%, including the new
stations, and they increased 10.4% ona
same-store basis.

Local advertising increased 16.6%
and National revenues grew nearly 30%.
Political advertising revenues were a
record $50 miltion, fueled by the hotly
contested gubernatorial and congres-
sional races in many of our markets. In
particular, Political advertising exceeded
Our expectations in Florida, Ohio, Rhode
Island and Tennessee.

Interactive Media Division Results
The Interactive Media Division's operat-
ing loss of $3.8 milion was an improve-
ment of 21.5% over 2005, excluding a
$700,000 write-down of an investment,
Revenues increased 33% to $27.2 rmillion,

The reduction in the division's logs was
predominantly due to improved results for
rmany of our Web sites, several of which
were profitable for the year. These includ-
ed TBO.com and TimesDispatch.com as
well as some of our community newspaper

\




Web sites in Central and Northern Virginia.
While online Classified advertising
revenues grew 15.6%, the overall growth

for the year was lower than originally
anticipated. The softness in Classified
advertising that affected cur newspapers
also impacted our onling revenues. In
the future, we will continue our practice
of upselling Classified advertising to our
Web sites from our traditional media
platforms, and more aggressively pursue
onling-only Classifieds. Local online
advertising increased 34% in 2006 and
National anline advertising doubled.

We joined a consortium of 215
newspapers in partnership with
Yahoo!HotJobs in late 2006. Being part
of this alliance will significantly expand our
online audience and provide us with new
technology. This opens the opportunity
to talk with new customers about a wide
array of products and services that have
not been part of our portfolic before.

Looking Ahead

We have three important mandates at
Media General - all focused on growth.
First, we want our share of advertising
revenues to be equal to or greater than
the prior year. Second, our advertising
growth rate must be equal to or greater
than our industry peers. Third, we want
at least 5% of our total revenues to be
derived from new products and services.

Qur focus is on a changing customer
and a changing environment. By stay-
ing close to our customers, we have
the flexibility to adapt our products and
make a difference 1o them. Delivering
the right product to the right customer
places Media General in an ideal posi-
tion to gain market share and be a con-
sequential force in our communities.

We are a pioneer of and a leader in
media convergence. A review of the
newspaper-broadcast cross owner-
ship rule is under way at the Federal
Communications Commission. We
believe that the combination of explod-
ing technology and the Internet make
the real-world case for complete repeal

more compelling with each passing day.
We are very optimistic about bringing
the clear benefits of common owner-
ship and convergence to an increasing
number of communities, large and small,
throughout the Southeast. We look for a
decision in the latter part of 2007.

Qur 7,200 employees have shown
themselves to be innovative and able to
respond effectively to a rapidly changing
marketplace. We rely on the valuable
feedback provided by our readers, view-
ers, users and advertisers, which helps
us stay in touch with their changing
needs and desires. Our customer focus
will enable us to continue to provide the
relevant and timely news, information
and entertainment they expect from us.

In an information hungry world, we
have the information. We know our
marketplaces. We understand how 1o
take new ideas and put them to work in
ways that are profitable. We want our
shareholders to have confidence that we
understand the future and face it from a
very solid position. Our record demon-
strates that we know how to operate
well in a changing marketplace today
and will do what is required to be suc-
cessful in the future.

We are committed to business suc-
cess through the highest standards of
responsibility and ethics. By serving our
customers and communities with excep-
tional service, we will provide long-term
value for shareholders.

Yours sincerely,

J. Stewart Bryan {ll
Chairman of the Board

%(Ms/b/% //Ma‘f/ﬁ

Marshall N. Morton
Prasident and Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2007

Strategic acquisitions
are also a key part of our
growth strategy.

The acguisition and
disposition activity within
our Broadcast Division in
2006 allowed us to:

Enter growing markets

Increase Broadcast
margins

Enhance NBC network
relationship

Improve the profit
contribution mix
between our Publishing
and Broadcast Divisions




Several of our newspapers are
generating circulation growth
by focusing more on readers’
expressed preferences.

Readership initiatives

Backed by extensive research, our newspapers are focused on creating positive reader
experiences through more visual page designs, strong enterprise reporting on local
issues and reader-contributed content. A commitment to local content, especially
on the front pages, is a priority. We strive to get closer to our readers by building
communities of interest, and our newsrooms emphasize public service journal-
ism that invites interactivity with readers.
Circutation Growth We have adapted new storytelling techniques
such as full-page graphic treatment of events or
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New revenue development

To support our newspaper growth, we have implemented comprehensive sales
initiatives, invested in technology to strengthen our sales capabilities, and priori-
tized the launching of new products and services.

The Publishing Division created a new products and services team in 2006
that is helping our newspapers develop non-traditional products for both existing
and new markets. Last year, the division introduced more than a hundred new
products and services.

A new integrated software system is now managing all advertising processes
at The Tampa Tribune and its associated daily newspapers and the Richmond
Times-Dispatch. The system will go live at the Winston-Salern Journal in 2007
and will be expanded to all newspapers by the end of 2008. This gives us
greater flexibility with our advertisers and allows account representatives to sell
across multiple platforms.

We continue to make significant investments in comprehensive sales training
programs. All account representatives are being trained in a customer-focused
curriculum, which provides a consulting process to help our advertisers address
their key marketing challenges. The training also helps our managers recruit
more experienced account representatives. Another training program focuses
on selling advertising packages to businesses that have not recently, or ever,
advertised with our newspapers.

Operational excellence

Qur newspapers have undertaken a number of initiatives to increase operational
excelience. In 2006, new press facilities were completed at the Bristol Herald
Courier in Virginia and Opelika-Auburn News in Alabama. A third press project
began at The (Lynchburg) News & Advance in Virginia that is scheduled to be
completed in 2008. These are not just replacements of older equipment, but
important projects that will enhance quality and generate new revenues from the
increased use of color and outside commercial jobs.

The Bristol Herald Courier has significantly increased its color advertising and
inserts and is printing several new four-color products. In Bristol, we now print
seven weekly newspapers for our Southwest Virginia community newspaper
group, which results in improved efficiencies at lower cost.

At the Opelika-Auburn
News, a state-of-the art
multimedia convergence
center was completed at
the same site. The facility
also houses broadcast
employees from conver-
gence partners WRBL in
Columbus, Georgia, and
our Web sites.

{From left) Bristol Herald Courfer pressmen Mike
Francisco and David Coleman prepare the new
press for one of the daily newspaper runs.




Our newspaper Web sites deliver breaking
News and provide users the opportunity to
interact with us and each other

Online content Eﬁnkpﬂw P Gt

1t Aucepemrt T
A strong online presence has been developed by our newspapers, ,‘:;:,;%:3:;:3333;}"" mm
which includes the increased use of multimedia and interaction Wiobe ::” ::::""w Tjj::
with users. We focus on breaking news, weather, sports, traffic and ol st dE Ot :

entertainment, and provide regular updates so readers can have the
maost timely and relevant information.
nigion | ‘ Y

With the increase in broadband connections at home and Kcaly s appasrs to b the nont

et s ey g thne ~ ot s par. | *
WOrk, video is becoming increasingly important. In the past, Media lohemtets Y ey cecs ' s’ y

oo wern ;aoa lnr'amblu ouTguwnﬂam':\’ur::: Eﬁ&‘.u i * 'l‘

General streamed video for maior stories, but today we also use ’— | * . ’{4

. . . - - ret of the o
this feature for news conferences, election coverage, public forums, W“: F%’;&Y.’ | ¥z

. . . flary Formar Gov., Mark &, warner
sporting events and entertainment. Through the use of more video : ‘t\ lered th fronz- ‘M’
and its multimedia elements, local reporting is enhanced. ,I W\ v AL . r@_%;ﬁ?m.w:m:‘..mmgm
. . s . . " 1 wd a th i3 a 0
Qur online content is distinguished from our daily newspapers . " ‘. AR D ke #t et

and includes much information not available in our newspapers. Al G '

q Breaking News
of our newspaper Web sites are focused on the 24-hour news cycle . ‘

and presenting news and content to our audiences as it happens.
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Conversations about news, life
and the Winston-Salem Journal

Blogs

A doctor in the house

W 0 0w g 0 ht R4 g e D ns Interaction with readers through dozens of blogs is another
Mokkahon i . .

oo e g e, sk gt o s way that we actively engage our audience. Blogs break
A e 1t it down traditional barriers and allow meaningful connections
!-'!N"-nuwudpuprum'nmn-m-«.nu pan ) » . )

T mre— s s et o oy et e between our journalists and readers.

Bremedical mincatin, ST I 1INty etk Carsfina, s roguiatios  © > A . .
juobiedraaneliiibiobiaiumtia e Our blogs focus on politics, travel, sports, commuting

and technology, and frequently include multimedia. Report-
ers interact with readers directly from breaking news events,
such as criminal trials, weather events and live sporting
events. Blogs also enable readers to comment on issues of
concern to them.

User-generated content

We encourage user-generated photos at most of our Web
sites. This feature is popular, whether it involves photos of
pats, vacations, family milestones or weather events. In
Tampa, readers sent their photas taken during the annual
Gasparilla festival and TBO.com produced an online video.
During the high school football season in a number of

markets, our readers submit photos from

the games via cell phones that are
immediately posted on our
Web sites.

Audience outreach

We have created multiple ways to reach our mobile
audience with the information they need. We launched
text messaging at our Gulf Coast locations during the
hurricane season in 2005, As a result of its popularity, we
expanded the service in 2006 to all of our sites. We send
out text message alerts for breaking news, sports, weather,
traffic and entertainment developments. Signups are growing
at all our sites and the service is promoted in our newspapers.
Text messaging can also be used to deliver an advertiser’s
message and is now generating revenue at selected locations.




Classified advertising has driven
robust online revenue growth.

Online classifieds

We provide a robust marketplace for buyers and sellers. Classified
advertising, the largest share of our online advertising revenues,
has grown dramatically since 2001, and we have introduced a
number of branded products.
Premium Classifieds have highly visible site posi-
tions and are strong revenue producers, We launched a
new version of our CarSeeker product in 2006. Users can
search the inventory for new and used cars, do a side-by-
side comparison and read extensive reviews. Our readers can
quickly search our Web sites to find information on homes for
sale, merchandise and many other items, We pian to put more
emphasis on several underserved markets, including used
cars and the service empioyment sector as well as
offering more services for free Classifieds.
In 2006, we redesigned many of
our Web sites to make them more
dynamic and include more emphasis,
on Classifieds. Classifieds now load
faster, and more functionality on the sites
contributes to better navigation. A new con-
tent rmanagement system also enables Media
General to update sites maore efficiently,

We introduced keyword searches on our Web
pages in 2006. Keywords allow advertisers
to use search terms in their newspaper
ads that will connect visitors to their
desired online content.

2006 Online Revenues
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Growing Internet sales

We continue to invest in opportunities to broaden our online
product porifolio to meet the growing needs of advertisers. In late
2006, we entered into a strategic alliance with YanoolHotJobs
and a national consortium of 215 newspapers to deliver a valu-
able Classified advertising network to our communities. We began
immediately with the transition of the online Classified career
sections of our 25 daily newspapers to a
Yahoo!HotJobs-driven platform. Cnce the
system is fully operational in the second
half of 2007, most career-related advertising sold through our
daily newspaper Web sites will also be posted on Yahoo!HotJobs.
Job seekers and employars from across the country will be able
to access state-of-the-art search and targeting features as well as
many mare user-friendly tools.

Local advertising

Local revenues, our next largest online category after Classified
advertising, increased 34% last year, including static and video
banners, sponsorships and display ads.

During 20086, we emphasized growth of onling sales
directly to advertising prospects compared to sales that
only were upsold by our traditional platforms. This resulted

in several innovative and successful products, often designed
with a hyper-local focus. Additional online sales staff were
deployed in many markets to respond to growing dermand for
online products and services.

National/Regional advertising

National/Regional online advertising continues 10 show strong
growth. Revenues more than doubled in 2006 as a result of
agreements with an expanding network of national agencies. In
addition, we focused on state and regional sales, especially in
GCentral Virginia.

We aisc saw good growth in contextual advertising by working
with third-party technology providers, who offer National advertis-
ers the opportunity to bid on keywords contained in some content.
Because the advertising is targeted, it is more effective for the
advertiser. Qur goal is to add more National advertisers by building
new relationships with first-time advertisers.

11




Our newspapers are developing a variety
of new products that target communities
of geographic and topical interests.

| | Hyper-local platforms

All of our newspapers have embraced hyper-local journalism.
Three new weeklies in the Richmond market are excellent
examples of meeting local needs.

A Web product, midlorhianexchange. com, and a com-
panion 24-page newspaper, provide local news, sports and
entertainment as well as a mixture of photos and stories about
" neighborhoods, schoals and _

youth activities. The newspaper O RO s= )

is mailed to the homes in a HNGE .. ,'
targeted and growing area of Build angcean in Midlo__

suburban Richmond. Many
of the photos and stories are
submitted by readers.

The model! for these
and other products was
developed from successful
hyper-local publications in
Sy Tampa. These products
e attract smaller advertisers
who want to target specific
neighborhood audiences.

Spanish language cErT |

In our markets with the largest Hispanic populations — Tampa, Richmond .
= SIPRS [ -
CENTRG 2] oF

and Northern Virginia ~ we have introduced Spanish-language products.
Three were launched in Tampa in 2005, including a Web =
site. a weekly newspaper and a broadcast service that Victoria sonrie a Trey Troviesa ;’-‘;5- '
provides local news briefs to several local radio stations. %ﬁ i
The newspaper is distributed to homes in selected o
neighborhoods and in convenient racks, helping us to
target particular demographics important to advertisers.
Richmond and Northern Virginia also have launched
successful Spanish-ranguage weekly newspapers.
All the products are strong revenue generators, and
the Tampa and Northern Virginia weeklies are profitable.

et




Entertainment/Lifestyles

Our newspapers offer many new products that provide informa-
tion about entertainment and lifestyles. They are reaching new
readers and attract market share with advertisers that want to
target particular niche audiences. In 2006, we introduced a new
entertainment weekly newspaper in Richmond and two four-color
magazines in Winston-Salem. One is produced for physicians in
North Carolina and the other is a general lifestyle magazine. Many
successful products can be easily replicated in multiple markets.

Specialty Classified

We provide special vehicles for Classified advertisers in
the recruitment, automotive and real estate categeries.
In some markets where we do not publish a newspaper,
we offer CareerSeeker products to meet local recruit-
ing needs. The products in Northern Virginia and North
Carolina follow a mode! created in Florida and extend
our Classified franchise beyond primary markets.

Goochland YMOA wekeom

L -
<

=]
@wml—

liestlth
Lu=hiem

Tioae

)

Other targeted interests -'()??
K A

We serve many other communities of interest with products .
related to health and fitness, women's issues, sports and
raligion, among others. These products take the form of
high-quality magazines, weekly newspapers or special
sections, shoppers, calendars and online products. In 2006,
many Media General markets produced Faith & Values
products, in print and online, to serve the needs of churches
and community members.

13




14

Most of our television stations are
ranked number one or two iNn their
markets because we stay relevant

to our audience.

Viewer-focused news

A significant contributor to the market-leading position of our television stations is our com-
mitment to viewer research. We aggressively seek feedback

our viewers care about most,

Every year in larger markets, we conduct comprehensive rese
improving local news. A number of stations offer
during their newscasts, airing viewers’ opinions a

plan to implernent this valuable feedback initiative.

Based on extensive research, every Media General station has reformatted its morning
news to provide tighter newscasts with more breaking news, weather and traffic. Since
the change, our morning news has consistently defivered the information viewers want
and need to begin their day. In several markets, we expanded our newscasts and are now
the first station to start news in the morning. Near!

morning news ratings.

e

DMA Rank

29

WRNCN, Raleigh/Durham/Chapel Hill, N.C. Home to Duke
University. North Carolina State and the University of North
Carolina, as well as Rasearch Triangle Park,

to understand the issues that

arch to develop plans for
“Voice of the Viewer” broacicast segments
bout our local news. In 2007, all stations

y every station saw an increase in their

Four new NBC stations

32

WCMH, Columbus, Ohio Home to Ohig State University. Ohio
is a key battleground state in Presidential elections and WCMH
generates substantial Political revenues,

40

WVTM, Birmingham, Ala. Home to the University of
Alabama at Birmingham, Birmingharm Southern College and
Samford University, as well as six Fortune 500 companies.

51

WJAR, Providence, R.I. Home 1o Brown University. The sta-
tion is by far the #1 station in its market. Providence has one
of the fastest-growing econormies in New England.

Media General's four new NBC stations, acqguired in
2006, are leaders in their strong and growing markets.
Three are located in state capitals and all four are in
major university communities. The acquisition is consis-
tent with our growth strategy and will advance, in two
ways, our goal of building upon our position of strength
in growing Southeastern markets.

First, we added the key Raleigh-Durham, North
Carolina, market, and second, we upgraded our mar-
ket presence in Birmingham, Alabama. At the same
time, the stations in Columbus, Ohio, and Providence,
Rhode island, hold strong positions in large-market
DMAs. In addition, they are located in political battle-
ground states.

The acquisition increased Media General's NBC-af-
filiated stations from five to nine, further enhancing our
relationiship with the network.




(From left) Co-anchors Cabot Rea and Colleen Marshall and Meteorologist Jym Ganahl at our new NBC station WCMH in Columbus, Ohio.

Operational excellence

The Broadcast Division has made significant investments in operational excellence projects. In early
2007, we completed centralization of the master control function for our nine NBC stations. This
operations center, located at our new station in Columbus, Ohio, is similar to our CBS master control
operation in Spartanburg, South Carolina. Centralization of technology saves costs, and it allows us
to increase quality by managing on-air signals and programming from a single location. Wa also are

Mario Hernandez, operations supervisor, NBC Central Broadcast Operations.

upgrading our Central Traffic Opera-
ticn in Tampa.

We continue to make investments
to enhance our news gathering and
production capabilities and improve
program quality. Three stations will
begin broadcasting news in the high-
definition format in 2007.

A new facility for WBTW is un-
der construction in Myrtle Beach,
South Caroling, to better serve this
growing area.
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Television station Web sites are advancing
with the proliferation of broadband.

—

Online video newscasts S ot v
feom [ive in the moment

Most of our television stations are providing several —— : L O T
. ) . . E D![}'G . W!Alﬁlll} COMMUNITY THINGS 10 DO SPOATS Lart TooLS

onling video newscasts each day. While in the past, Search: Oreymora Ostn

we only streamed video for major stories, such as ——

hurricanes, Media General now posts video on a

regular basis on all sites. Some stations offer live

Webcasts of the noon and 6 p.m. newscasts, while

others provide Web-exclusive newscasts. We feature

Video Headlines

AP BREAI

- Tt A m

i : ¥ Schweichen Ay | +o4 Fmce 4
the latest breaking news, sports, traffic and weather {v D--ny-';; 4 -
. Y . . ! Mayot's Race Housd]
over afl our stations’ Web sites, most in the form i G TR I
it
of two-to-three minute video clips. All are updated SchwskchentComacted 1| L
i ¥ Childs en's Garsprinr Ba Repo
several times a day. parode

! Find outtne bust wayio enjoy - ! fofpra
tha Children's Gaspanila e
l-Parads. . _

" These local multimedia elements enhance our
Web sites and often include news conferences, elec-
tion coverage and special reports. Users can sign up
for e-mail alerts that include video clips embedded in
the pages. We also provide coverage of parades, high
éc_hgjc)l sports and high' profite criminal trials, and Web
casts of church services in some communities.

In addition, two of our network partners, CBS
and ABC, offer live streaming of their primetime
shows over our Web sites,

We continue to provide live 24/7 video
feports during weather emergencies, en-
hancing our position as a recognized /

iifeline to our communities,

Online video ads

On many television sites we offer online video
advertising. This technology is an example of how
our television stations can attract more viewers and
advertisers to their Web sites. We also are building
relationships with several national network providers
to further increase video advertising. In 2007, we are
launching new Flash-based video technology on all

g | e omon || our television Web sites, which is the delivery format
"‘m " [ W m tar aw . .

] ]!43 et ’ ',' oLy ‘.‘ ot Tt of choice by advertisers and users.

== e
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Digital spectrum offers multiple
channel opportunities.

24/7 weather channels

We took some aggressive steps in 2006 to monetize
our digital investment. Ten Media General stations
now operate 24/7 weather channels. These chan-
nels bring a valued service 10 our local communities,
while extending our station's weather brands and
offering a new revenue stream. The stations use several different formats depending
on the market. Some provide travel forecasts for airport hubs such as Atlanta and
Cincinnati. Cthers provide the national weather and insert local weather.

New affiliations

Our former WRB affiliate in Jacksonville, Florida, and our former
UPN affiliate in Asheville, North Carolina, are now CW affiliates. We
also secured CW Plus affiliations in Charleston, South Carolina,
and Greerwille, North Carolina, as well as MyNetworkTV
affiiations in Savannah, Georgia, and Florence/Myrtle
s Beach, South Carolina. The stations reach a young
demographic and provide more inventory to sell.

On January 1, 2007, we launched
our first dual affiliation at our Alexandria,
Louisiana, station, with the addition of a
CBS channel. We are providing viewers
with expanded content and maximizing the sales and marketing
opportunities presented by this powerful NBC/CBS combination.

Local programming

We have developed non-news local programming for several
successful television products. In Tampa, our morning variety
show, Daytime, features information and advice on personal
finance, food. home improvement, personal development and
entertainment. Daytime was syndicated to six Media General
television markets in 2006, where we can insert local segments.
These stations have another local advertising revenue stream
and the programs help local branding.

Other niche programs in Tampa focus on golf, fishing,
entertainment celebrities, music and mowvies.

e e b e
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We believe media convergence
is the best approach to meeting
audience needs for excellent
local news and information.

Tampa multimedia news center

Our Tampa News Center showcases the company's success with convergence
and its multimedia approach. Convergence brings together the strengths of
newspapers, television and the Web to provide our readers, viewers and users
with a higher-quality product than they could obtain from just one medium,

The Tampa Tribune, WFLA-TV and 7BO.com share resources in providing
strong local news and information. The partnership has helped WFLA maintain
its position as the number one station in Florida and allowed The Tampa Tribune
to maintain its competitive edge.

Journalists across all platforms share information content and collaborate in
ways that our competitors cannat, and they cover the stories from their varied
vantage points. We give our local audiences the news as soon as we have it,
and more cften than ever that means online. The three partners help Media
General build and hold a strong competitive advantage and increase our focus
and connection to the local community.

Our unduplicated audience reach in Tampa is 76%

ch'gﬁv,'{glgg TAMPA g&{_, heorn

wrLaTY TRIBUNE

i3 Tampa Bay Orine

% of DMA

5B " wrLa channel s

0 .
4 5 A) The Tampa Tribune (and associated papers)

ﬂ % TBO.com

7 @ % Total Audience Reach (less duplication)

Source: Clark, Martire, and Bartolomeo, Inc. Market Research

Qur Tampa platforms have an unduplicated reach of 76% of all
homes in the Tampa/St. Petersburg Designated Market Area
(DMA). The DMA includes nine counties. Our reach represents
2.4 million people, or more than twice that of our nearest com-
petition. This reach is especially impressive considering that there
are six other daily newspapers in the DMA.,

Another major market where we have gained significant reach
is Richmond, Virginia. The Richmond Tirmes-Dispatch reaches
70% of adults in the market in print and online, making it number
six of the top 50 newspapers in the country for this metric.




A multimedia desk supports all three media platforms at the Tampa News Center.

Other Convergence marke’[S b Bristol, Va./Johnson City, Tenn.

p Myrtle Beach/Florence, S.C.

Five additional Media General markets partner on convergence. Fiber

optic cable connects the newspapers, lelevision stations and online p Opelika-Auburn, Ala./Columbus, Ga.
operations. TV and print reporters do regular reperts for broadcast from
sets at the newspapers. In each market, the partners work together to p Panama City, Fla./Dothan, Ala.

expand their content offerings. Our communities benefited in 2006, for
example, from increased election coverage, sports and breaking news.
In Myrtle Beach/Florence,
South Caroling, our partners
launched scnow.com, a regional
Web portal. scnow.com averages
1.3 million page views gach month,
a 25% increase from the combined
statistics for our previous stand- :'.;;‘..“’i."“;:“‘;m"f.‘::g"m?“‘u
alone newspaper and television SIS
station Web sites in the market.

P Roanoke/Lynchburg/Danville, Va.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion addresses the principal factors affecting the
Company's financial condition and operations during the past three
years and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated fi-
nancial statements and the Five-Year Financlal Summary found else-
where in this report.

OVERVIEW

The Company is a diversified communications company located
primarily in the southeastern United States. Its mission is to be the
leading provider of high-quality news, information and entertainment
in the Southeast by cantinually building its position of strength in
strategically located markets. The Company garners this strength
through organic growth, the development of products and services
that are both unique and relevant to its customers, and through
strategic acquisitions which focus on expanding its footprint in the
Company's chosen scutheastern market without ignoring expan-
sion opportunities in other burgeoning markets. The Company
implements {is strategy and manages its operations through three
business segments: Publishing, Broadcast and Interactive Media.
The Company owns 25 daily newspapers and more than 150 other
publications, 23 network-affiliated television stations, and it operates
more than 75 online entarprises.

The Company seized strategic opportunities in 2006 which in-
cluded the acquisition of four NBC owned and operated television
stations as well as the disposition of several CBS stations in mar-
kets which were not strategically aligned with the Company's vision.
The stations acquired included: WNCN in Raleigh, North Carolina;
WCMH in Columbus, Ohic; WVTM In Birmingham, Alabama; and
WJAR in Providence, Rhode Island. This acquisition expanded the
Company's southeastern footprint to include the key Raleigh-Durham
market. 1 also added stations to the Company's portfolio in growing
markets which are expected to enhance margins in the Broadcast
Division and to better balance overall contributions to revenue and
operating profits between the Broadcast and Publishing operations.
The divesied stations included: KWCH in Wichita, Kansas {includ-
ing that station's three satellites); WIAT in Birmingham, Alabama (as
agreed upon when granted FCC approval for the purchase of WVTM
in Birminghamy; WDEF in Chattancoga, Tennessee; and KIMT in Ma-
son City, lowa.

Media General relies heavily on advertising from all three of its seg-
ments as a primary source of revenue. The distribution of advertising
revenues in the United States continues to shift among numerous
media, as well as many new entrants, causing increased campeti-
tion. While internet advertising growth rates have been the highest of
all media, that growth is from a relatively small base. The Company's
Interactive Media Division has capitalized on this trend posting a 22%
advertising revenue increase over 2005. The Company has part-
nered with YahootHotJobs and several other Publishing companies
that represent more than 200 newspapers in the online classified
employment arena. Full transiticn to this new platform will be com-
pleted later in 2007. The Company initially expects higher revenues
and expense with minimal effect on profit in 2007; the benefit to the
bottom line is expected in 2008 and beyond. While speculation con-
tinues to exist regarding the pace and intensity of a shift away from
traditional print advertising, the Company believes that newspaper
advertising will remain a significant and valuable source of revenues.
Although newspaper circulation in the publishing industry has ex-
perienced a slow erosion with the availability of information from sa
many competing mediums, the Company actively pursues all means
of sustaining and growing its circulation. Through content innova-
tion, the Company's newspapers are committed to strengthening
their relevance and community interest which resulted in increased
Sunday or daily circulation at seven of the Company’s newspapers in

2006. The Company remained at the top of its peer group for total
revenue and advertising revenue growth in 2008, and was the leader
in Retail revenue growth, an achievement that is largely attributable
to the intreduction of targeted new products.

Advertising at the Broadcast Division can be significantly im-
pacted by events like the Olympics and the Super Bowl, as well
as national and statewide political races which generate additional
advertising dollars. These events, or their absence in a given year,
cause a certain cyclicality in the Company’s Broadcast revenues as
even-numbered years tend to flourish from an influx of Pdlitical rev-
enues combined with the presence of Olympics advertising. The
following graph shows Political advertising as a percentage of total
time sales, clearly demonstrating how Political advertising contrib-
utes to this cyclicality.

Political Advertising Revenues as a Percentage of
Total Broadcast Time Sales

Percentage
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Accordingly, 2006 was a banner year for the Broadcast Division
as it reaped the benefits of more than $50 million in Political adver-
tising revenues {including $20 million from the newly acquired NBC
stations).

Newsprint prices also influence the Company’s results in two
fundamental ways. First, the Company owns a one-third interest in
SP Newsprint Company (SPNC), a domestic newsprint manufacturer
with a manufacturing capacity of over one million short tons annu-
ally. Second, newsprint expense represents a significant portion
of the Publishing Division's total costs (approximately 14% to 15%
in each of the last three years). While higher newsprint prices are
beneficial to SPNC, as they typically translate intc increased profits,
they are detrimental to the Publishing Division because they increase
production costs. The Company’s share of SPNC’s annual produc-
tion is approximately 350,000 short tons, which is more than twice
the approximate annual newsprint consurmption of its newspapers.
Consequently, each $1/ton change in newsprint selling price {absent
other changes) affects the Company’s net income by approximately
$135 thousand annually,

Newsprint prices have historically been driven by the economics
of supply and demand. After hitting a 20-year low in 2002, newsprint
prices rose steadily over the iast three and one-half years, befcre
leveling out in mid-2006 as shown in the accompanying graph. The
Company expects the downturn in prices that began in the fourth
quarter of 2006 will continue throughout 2007 due to a reduction in
newsprint consumption on an industry-wide basis as many publish-
ing companies are experiencing sluggish circulation volumes, have
swiiched tc lighter weights of newsprint and are becoming more
focused on newsprint conservation efforts, all of which contribute to
lower demand. The financial results of SPNC in 2004 and 2006 re-
flected the rising prices shown below; however, SPNC's 2005 results
ran ceounter to this trend, as increased energy costs stifled higher
revenues. In 2004, the Company's share of SPNC's income was
$1 million. Despite higher newsprint prices in 2005, the Company's
share of SPNC’s income remained at $1 million due te soaring en-
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€rgy costs which essentially offset rising newsprint prices. However,
2006 resuilts rebounded as SPNC's operations reflected that year's
improved newsprint prices and the Company recorded $10.5 million
as its share of SPNC's incormg (despite energy cost levels similar to
those of 2005).

Newsprint Price Per Short Ton
Dollars
650

600 === i
550

500
450 /\A
400 [‘-f‘

350 Y— 1 T T T
Dec Jun Duc Jun Cec Jun Dec Jun Dec
02 03 03 04 04 05 05 06 08

The Company continues to participate actively in the Federal
Communications Commission's {FCC) review of its media owner-
ship regutations. In 2003, the FCC passed new rules that would
have allowed Ccommaon-ownership of broadcast television stations
and newspapers in all large markets, and would have allowed cross-
ownership on a more limited basis in all but the smallest markets.
However, after a remand by the courts, the new rules are back at
the FCC for reconsideration and, in mid-2006, the FCC re-opened
its media ownership proceedings. The Company believes the old
regutations, which date from 1975 (and the revised rules to a lesser
degres) do not reflect the realities of the current media market-
place and impinge on the Company's First Amendment rights, The
Company's filings with the FCC argue for complete repeal of the
1975 nule across all markets, A favorable outcome would facilitate
greater opportunities for the Company to expand its convergence
efforts in the Southeast. The Company believes that uncertainty
about media ownership issues has had the effect of dampening the
acquisition market in recent years as buyers and sellers have waitad
for the FCC 1o provide clarity. Unfortunately, there is no near-term
reselution in sight, While the process continues, the Company has
sought license renewals and waivers from the FCC in the markets
where Cross-ownership remains an issug. The Company will con-
tinue to evaluate attractive acquisition opportunities as they emerge
and anticipates continuing to expand its reach in a complementary
and disciplined fashion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP)
requires that management make various estimates and assumptions
that have an impact on the assets, liabifities, revenues, and expenses
reported.  The Company considers an accounting estimate to be
critical if that estimate requires assumptions be made about mat-
ters that were uncertain at the time the accounting estimate was
made. and if changes in the estimate {which are reasonably likely to
occur from period to period} would have a material impact on the
Company's financial condition or results of operations. The Audit
Commit_tee of the Board of Directors has reviewed the development,
selection and disclosure of these critical accounting estimates, While
actual results could differ from accounting estimates, the Company's
most critical accounting estimates and assumptions are in the fol-
lowing areas:

Intangible assets

- The Company reviews the carrying values of both goodwill and
other identified intangible assets, including FCC licenses, in the fourth
quarter each year, or earlier if events indicate impairment may have
arisen, utilizing discounted cash flow models. The preparation of
such discounted future operating cash flow analyses requires signifi-
cant management judgment with respect to cperating profit growth
rates, appropriate discount rates, and residual values. The fourth-
quarter 2006 tests indicated no impairment. However, since the
estimated fair values in the discounted cash flow madel are subject
to change based on the Company's performance and overall market
conditions, future impairment charges are possible,

The Company alse pericdically reevaluates the remaining useful
life of its finite-lived intangible assets. Effective at the beginning of
the faurth quarter of 2004, the Company reevaluated the remaining
usefu! life of its network affiliation intangible assets {previously 40
years) and determined that the life should be 25 years because this
was deermed to be the length of time before a material modification
of the underlying contract would occur. Because of this change
approximately $1.9 million of lower amortization expense was re-
corded in the first three quarters of 2004 related to network affiliation
intangible assets,

Pension plans and postretirement benefits

The determination of the liabilities and cost of the Company's
pension and other postretirement plans requires the use of assump-
tions. The actuarial assumptions used in the Company’s pension
and postretirement reporting are reviewed annually with independent
actuaries and compared with external benchmarks, historicat trends,
and the Company’s own experience to determine that its assump-
tions are reasonable. The assumptions used in developing the re-
quired estimates include the following key factors:

. Discount rates

. Expected return on plan assets

. Salary growth

. Mortality rates

. Health care cost trends

. Retirement rates

. Expected contributions

A One percentage-point change in the expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets would have resulted in a change in pension
expense for 2006 of approximately $2.9 milion, A one percentage-
paoint increase or decrease in the discount rate would have raised or
lowered by approximately $7.5 million the plans’ 2006 expense and
would have changed the plans’ projected obligations by approxi-
mately $65 milion as of the end of 2006. Effective for fiscal 2007,
the Company redesigned its defined benefit and defined contribu-
tion retirement plans and also added certain new employee benefit
programs. The changes included: freezing the service accrual in the
defined benefit retirement plan for existing employees (white clos-
ing this plan to new employees). increasing the maximum company
match in the 401 (k) defined contribution plan to 5% from 4% of an
employee’s earnings, adding a profit sharing feature to the 401(k)
plan, and establishing new retiree medical savings accounts, The
Company tock these steps to reduce the volatility of future pension
expense and contributions while sontinuing to offer competitive re-
tirement benefits to its employees. Beginning with its fiscal 2006
year-end financial statements, the Company adopted Staterment No.
168 - Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirerment Plans — an amendment of FAS statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R), and its balance shest now reflects the funded
status of the Company's defined bensit pension and other postre-
tirement benefit plans.
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Self-insurance labilities

The Company self-insures far certain medical and disability ben-
efits, workers” compensation costs, and autormobile and general lia-
bility claims with specified stop-loss provisions for high-dollar claims.
The Company estimates the liabilities for these items (approximately
$19 million at December 31, 2006) based on-historical experience
and advice from actuaries and claim administrators. Actual claims
experience as well as changes in health care cost trends could result
in the Company’s eventual cost differing from the estimate.

Income taxes

The Company files income tax returms with various state tax ju-
risdictions in addition to the Internal Revenue Service and is regularty
audited by both federal and state tax agencies. From time to time,
those audits may result in proposed adjustments. The Comparny has
considered the alternative interpretations that may be assumed by the
various tax agencies and does not anticipate any material impact on
its earnings as a result of the various audits. The Company will adopt
interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
- an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, in the first quarter of
2007. This interpretation requires that income tax positions recog-
nized in an entity's tax returns have a more-likely-than-not chance of
being sustained prior to recording the related tax benefit in the finan-
cial statements. If subsequent information becomes available that
changes the more-likely-than-not assessment of either a previously
unrecognized or recogrized iax benefit, the corresponding tax benefit
or expense would be recorded in the period in which the information
becomes available. The Company does not expect the adoption of
FIN 48 to have a material impact on its financial position,

The Company records income tax expense and liabilities in ac-
cordance with SFAS No. 108, Accounting for Income Taxes, under
which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the differing
treatments of various items of income and expense for financial re-
porting versus tax reperting purposes. The Company bases its es-
timate of those deferred tax assets and liabilities on current tax laws
and rates as well as expected future income, Therefore, any signifi-
cant changes in enacted federal and state tax laws or in expected
future earnings might impact income tax expense and deferred tax
assets and ligbilities.

The Company has benefited from the Qualified Production Activ-
ity Deduction (QPAD), which was passed as part of the American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and became effective for years beginning
with 2005, The QPAD, which effectively lowers the federal tax rate of
domestic manufacturers, is being phased in over a five-year period.
The majority of the Company's Publishing operations qualify for this
deduction and the provision for income taxes reflects this deduction.

Summary

Management believes, given current facts and circumstances,
supplemented by the expertise and concurrence of external resources,
including actuaries and accountants, that its estimates and assump-
tions are reasonable and are in accordance with GAAP. Management
further believes that the assurnptions and estimates actually used in
the financial statements, taken as a whole, represent the most appro-
priate choices from among reasonably possible afternatives and fairly
present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the Company. Management will continue to discuss key estimates
with the Audit Commitiee of the Board of Directors.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

" Net income
The Company recorded net income of $79 milion in 2006, a net
loss of $243 million in 2005, and net income of $80 million in 2004. In

order to facilitate a meaningful review of comparative results sparning
the last three years, several items merit separate consideration. As
discussed previougly, the Company sokd several CBS stations in 2008
resulting in a net gain of $11 milicn ($0.46 per diluted share); the fol-
lowing discussion focuses only on results from continuing operations
for all years presented. Unless otherwise indicated, results of the four
newly acquired NBC stations (which contributed approximately $20
million in pretax broadcast operating profits) are also excluded to pro-
vide relevant year-over-year comparisons. See Note 2 for a detailed
discussion of the Company's 2008 acquisitions and divestitures. Ad-
ditionally, fiscal 2006 included an exira (53rd) week, the estimated
impact of which merits consideration in several instances in the fol-
lowing analysis. Results for 2005 were substantially impacted by the
January adoption of EITF Topic D-108, Use of the Residual Method to
Value Acquired Assets Other Than Goodvall, which requires the use
of a direct method for valuing all acquired intangible assets other than
goodwill. The direct method resuited in recording a cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle charge of $325.5 milion {($13.63
per diluted share) in the first quarter of 2005. See Note 3 for a full
discussion of this accounting change. Also influencing 2005 results
was the sale of the Company's 20% interest in The Denver Post Com-
pany to MediaNews Group, Inc., which resulted in an after-tax gain of
$19.4 million ($0.81 per diluted share).

Excluding the Denver gain, income in 2006 from continuing op-
erations before the cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle rose $3.7 million (%) over the prior year. Factors which
fueled this increase included a 23% rise in Broadcast operating in-
come due to vigorous Political advertising, a nine-fold increase in the
Company's share of SPNC's results {orimarily attributable to higher
newsprint selling prices), and a 53rd week in the year which account-
ed for approximately $2.5 million in additional income. Conversely,
several items served to temper these increases including a 65% rise
in interest expense and an 11% increase in intangibles amartization,
both overwhelmingly due to the acquisition of the NBC stations. The
Publishing Division suffered a 7.5% decline in operating profits as
slightly higher advertising revenues were unable to offset higher divi-
sional expenses. Also negatively impacting results was $5.6 million
of non-cash steck option expense recerded in 2006 as a result of the
raquired adoption of Statement 123(R} (discussed more fully beiow).

In January 2006, the Company adopted FASE Statement 123{R},
Share-Based Payment, under which share-based transactions are
accounted for using a fair-value-based method to recognize non-
cash compensation expense. Prior to adoption, the Company’s
stock-based compensation plans were accounted for in accordance
with APB Qpinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued fo Employ-
ees, under which stock options were valued using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The Company adepted Statement 123(R) us-
ing the modified prospective method, at which time it also switched
to using a binomial lattice model to value its stock options. The
Company astimated its volatility factor based on its historical vola-
tility over the contractual term of the options using historical data
to derive the opticn's expected life and employes forfelture rates.
As noted above, in 2006 the Company recognized compensation
expense of $5.6 million ($3.6 million after taxes) related to stock op-
ticns as a result of adopting Statement 123(R). As of December
31, 20086, there was $5.3 million of total unrecognized cost related
to employee stock options and $12.9 million of total unrecognized
cost related to Performance Accelerated Restricted Shares which
are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
1.8 years and 5 years, respectively. Results for prior pericds have
not baen restated. Ses Note 8 for a complete discussion on the
adoption of this standard.

Excluding the Denver gain, income from continuing operations
before the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of
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$61.7 millicn in 2005 was down $15.5 million from 2004. This year-
over-year decline was primarily attributable to a 22.7% decrease in
Broadcast Division operating profits due to the $34.2 million drop in
Political advertising ‘evenues, as well as the ahsence of §5 millicn
in Olympics-related advertising. The Fublishing and Interactive Me-
dia Divisicns played a much smaller role in shaping the Company's
year-over-year overall results, Again exciuding the Denver gain, Pub-
lishing Divisicn operating profits were down nominally from the prior
year, while the Interactive Media Division reduced its operating loss
by $2.3 million {36.3%) compared tc 2004, Other dynamics which
influenced the year's results included a 12.9% increase in intangibles
amartization (principally due to the shortening of network affiliation
intangible asset useful iives from 40 to 25 years in the fourth quarter
of 2004), and a 5.4% reduction in intarest expense (lower average
debt levels more than offset higher rate). The Company's share of
SP Newsprint's results was vitually level with the 2004 results, as
higher selling prices barely outpaced increased raw material costs
and significantly higher energy expense.

Publishing

Excluding the Denver gain, operating incame for the Publishing
Division was down $9.6 miflion in 2006 as compared tc the prior
year. A $13.3 million increase in revenues was more than offset by
higher operating expenses. This revenue improvement was aided by
a 53rd week in 2006 which contributed approximately $10.5 million
across various revenue categories. As illustrated by the following
chart, Classified revenues remaineg the Division's growth engine,
with Retail advertising developing into a close contender.  Due in
large pan to the strength of these two advertising categories, 2006
marked the fourth consecutive year in which the Divisicn posted
year-over-year growth in overall revenues. Classified advertising rev-
€nues rose 4.4% and contributed 60% of the total advertising growth
due primarily to expiosive real estate advertising and the extra week.
Retail advertising improved nearly 4% and reflected new revenue
initiatives and consistent growth in several categeries, particularly
home improverment, as well as the extra week. Conversely, National
advertising labored due to weakness in the telecommunications cat-
egory (which spilled over from 2005) and in the automotive Category.
Circulation ravenues fell below the prior-year level due to a change in
wholesalg rates to independent carriers in some markets, for which
there was a corresponding expense decrease, as well as to small
volume declines.

Publishing Advertising Revenues by Category

$ in millions

Retail Classified MNaticnal

2004 [J2005 02008

Publishing Division operating expenses increased $22.7 million in
2006 over the previous year, which included approximately $8 million
of additional expsnse associated with this year's 53rd week. A 4.5%
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rise in compensation and employee benefit costs accounted for the
largest portion of this increase dug to the extra week and to normal
salary increases combined with higher retirement costs. Despite a
leveling off of newsprint prices for the latter half of 2008, newsprint
expense was up 4.6% in the year as average newsprint prices in-
creased $74 per short ton over 2005’ average prices. Reduced
newsprint consumption due to switching to fighter weight newsprint,
concerted conservation efforts and decreased circulation volumes
helped to significantly cffset these higher newsprint prices as wall ag
the impact of the extra week. Additionally, depreciation and amor-
tizaticn expensa rose 8.5% in 2006 as a result of two new printing
facilities and a new advertising system, as well as accelerated depre-
ciation related to the reduction of web-widths on printing presses.

Excluding the Denver gain, operating income for the Publishing
Division showed minimal movement in 2005 from the prior year; a
$21.4 milion increase in revenues was more than offset by higher
operating expenses. Classified advertising revenues rose over 8%
and contributed three-quarters of the division's ravenue gain in 2005
on the strength of robust employment advertising in almost all mar-
kets. Retail and National revenues were both up 3.1%, reflecting
modest, but consistent growth. In 2005, Retail advertising benefited
from increases in the financial and medical categories as wall as solig
growth in preprints.  National advertising began 2005 with a flourish
(primarily in the telecommunications category) but scftened signifi-
cantly in the latter part of the year, although still outperforming 2004,
Additionally, small volume decreases at most newspapers combined
with & change in wholesale rates to independent carriers in some
markets (for which there was a parallel expense decrease) led to
lower Circulation revenues in 2005 as compared 1o the priar year.

Publishing Division Operating expenses increased $22 2 million in
2005 over the previous year due to a combinaticn of several signifi-
cant factors. Employee compensation and benefit costs increased
$10.6 million due to annual salary increases, higher retirement plan
expenses and increased health care costs, Newsprint expense was
up $6.8 milion due to a $55 per ton rise in average price. Addition-
ally, certain other costs at the Florida properties were up 5.1% due
to new product offerings, advertising incentives, circulation-related
costs and the transition to an expanded packaging facllity,

Broadcast

Broadcast results for 2006 included the four NBC stations which
the Company acquired in the second half of the year. These sta-
tions contributed $60.1 miliion in revenues and $19.6 million in op-
erating profits to the Division, As their integration into the Division's
existing framewark continues to progress and evaive, the Company
looks forward to their future contributions. As mentioned earlier, for
purposes of the remainder of this discussion and for the chart that
follows, results of the acquired stations as well as discontinued op-
erations are excluded.

In 20086, Broadcast Division operating profits exceaded the prior
year by $15 milion {22.9%) as the direct result of a $28.5 million
(10.4%) increase in revenues. These strong results were bolstered
by a 53rd week which augrmented operating profits and revenues
by approximately $1.7 million ang 86 miliion, respectively. Robust
advertising time sales, driven predominantly by a surge in Political
advertising, significantly outpaced higher operating expenses. As
illustrated in the following chart, advertising revenues rose in all
categories over the past two years {with the exception of Political
advertising in 2005's off-slection year). In 2006, Politica advertising
revenues centributed nearly 85% of the Division's increase in overall
advertising time sales (Up 12.4%) as campaign spending was in full
throttie for gubernatorial, Senate, House, and state and local races
in this election year, Despite the vast majority of advertising dollars
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being channeled into Political advertising in 2006, Local and Na-
tional garnered a respectable share of advertising revenues as they
showed improvement on the strength of the telecommunications
and services categories.

Broadcast Advertising Revenues by Category
$ in milions
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The Broadcast Division's total advertising sales consistently
outperformed that of the industry throughout 2006 ang 2005. Ac-
cording to the Television Bureau of Advertising (a not-for-profit trade
association of America’s broadcast television industry), time sales
across the broadcast industry for 2006 (including Political revenues
in either National or Local, as appropriate) increased 8.6% as com-
pared to the Division's stronger 11.3% increase; industry results for
2005 dropped 5.7% from 2004 in contrast to the Division’s smaller
3.2% decline. This better-than-industry revenue performance was
driven by the Division's robust Political advertising in 2006 and its
outstanding Local time sales in 2005, The Division's National time
sales were below the industry average in 2005, largely a reflection
of the exceptionally strong 2004 Politicat advertising garnered by
the division's TV stations, but regained a foothold in 2006 as sales
exceeded the industry average. The following chart illustrates the
Division's performance by category over the last two years as com-
pared {o the industry:

20086 vs. 2005 2005 vs. 2004

Media

Media General

Industry General Industry Growth/

Time Sales Growth Growth Decling {Decline)
Local 4.4% 5.9% (1.7%} 6.7%
National 15.8% 21.7% (11.7%) (18.0%})
Total 8.6% 11.3% (5.7%]) {3.2%)

Broadcast Division operating expenses increased $13.5 million
in 2006 over the pravicus year, which included approximately $4.3
million of additional expense associated with this year’s 53rd week,
The primary factor driving the increase was higher employee com-
pensation and benefit costs which grew approximately 6% due to
merit pay raises and increased sales commissions associated with
new business including the extra week. Programming costs were
up 10% due in large part to the extra week and higher syndication
costs. Another dynamic which contributed to the Division's higher
expense level was the near completion of its governmeni-mandated
conversion to broadcast high definition television, which translated

into increased depreciation on the new equipment and higher elec-
tricity costs associated with operating the new transmitters and other
digital equipment.

Broadcast operating profits declined $19.3 million in 2005 due 10
the near absence of Political revenues. A predictable, but nonethe-
less large, decline in Political revenues necessitated an increase in
cperating expenses as the Division worked to replace not only Politi-
cal revenues, but also $5 millicn in 2004 Olympics-related advertising
revenues. Despite the challenges presented in this odd-numbered
year, revenue declines were limited to $9.9 million, as higher Local
advertising scftened much of the blow from lower Palitical revenues.
Aggressive sales development initiatives drove the robust Local time
sales due to strength in nearly all categories, particularly furniture
and financial. National advertising revenues rose modestly in 2005;
results by category were mixed as strong corporate and home im-
provement advertising more than offset weaker fast food and auto-
motive ad revenues to produce the improved performance.

Broadcast operating expenses rose $9.4 million in 2005 as com-
pared to the prior year. The primary factor driving this increase was
higher employee compensation and benefit costs which grew 7.1%
due to annual salary increases, sales commission growth associated
with new business, increased retirement plan expense, and higher
health care costs. Increased sales-related expenses (including high-
er customer sales incentives and increased consulting fees related to
new business development initiatives), as well as costs associated
with Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, also adversely impacied Broadcast
operating expenses.

Interactive Media

The 2006 purchase of the four NBC television stations included
their associated websites. In addition to contributing more than $1
million in revenues to the Imteractive Media Division {(IMD}, the newly
acquired online operations alse produced a small operating profit.
For purposes of the remainder of this discussion and for the chart
that follows, resulis from both the acquired NBC websites as well
as the discontinued CBS website operaticns are excluded. The pri-
mary components comprising the Interactive Media Division were the
website group asseciated with newspapers and television stations
{the online group}, the advergaming business which was purchased
in the third quarter of 2005 (Blockdot), and the equity income cr loss
and the write-downs recorded on the Company's portion of its inter-
active investments.

The Interactive Media Divisicn's 2006 results were heavily im-
pacted by a $.7 milicn write-down (to reflect the estimated fair value}
of the Divisien's investment in a company that produces interactive
entertainment and to which the Company has licensed proprietary
game content. Absent this write-down, the Division reduced its op-
erating loss by 21.5%. Results of its online group improved 25% in
that same period, while Blockdot's operating loss rose slightly over
the pricr year. Divisional revenues grew by 28% in 2006 with the
online group supplying the lion’s share of the year-over-year improve-
ment. The 53rd week in 2006 generated $.3 million in revenues, but
also spawned a $.2 million operating loss in that period as the result
of higher expenses. As illustrated by the following chart, advertising
revenues rose in all categories over the past two years. Classified
advertising rose more than 15% in 2006 and remained the founda-
tion for the Division's revenue improvement as upsell arrangements
and other classified products continued to thrive.  Under these ar-
rangements, customers pay an additional fee to have their classified
advertisement placed online simultaneously with its publication in the
newspaper. National and Local advertising have displayed consis-
tent improvement since the Division's inception and have developed
inte valuable contributors to the IMD’s revenue performance.
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Interactive Media Advertising Revenues by Category
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14
12
10
8 -
6
4
2 .
0- Classified ] Locat National
[J2004 2005 2006

IMD's operating expenses were up 35 million in the year, pre-
dominantly resulting from higher employes compensation and ben-
efits expense due to additional staffing in key areas, higher sales-re-
lated commissions [commensurate with higher revenuss) and annual
salary increases. Additionally, higher costs were incurred as the
Division strives to expand its advergaming business by investing in
its infrastructura and by attracting, as well as retaining, high-guality
employees.

The Interactive Media Division reduced its operating loss by
36.3% in 2005 frem 2004. Revenues increased $6.6 million (47.6%),
with two-thirds of the increase coming from Classified advertising.
Classified advertising has grown dramatically since the Division's
inception in 2001, with all years up to and including 2005 produc-
ing year-over-year improvements of nearly 50% or greater. Local
and National advertising also made salid contributions to divisional
revenue improvement. Cperating expenses were up $4.3 million in
2005, pradominantly resulting from higher employee compensation
and benefits expense due to sales positions being filled, additional
sales-related commissions and annual salary increases.

Beginning with the 2001 formation of the Interactive Media
Division, the Company anticipated associated divisionai lossas for
several years as innovative products were developed and acquired,
advertiser relationships were cultivated, and the infrastructure to
support the Division was formead, The Interactive Media Division
remains focused on expanding product offerings, securing and re-
taining talented personnel, driving reverue growth with innovative
products and services, and enhancing content and design across
all the Company's online enterprises. The Division's performance
continues to progress as demonstrated by consistent profitability
since 2004 at the Company's two largest online enterprises, T8O,
com and TimesDispatch.com. Several of the Division's smaller on-
line enterprises also improved upon their profitability this year,

interest expense

Interest expense increased $19.1 milion in 2006 from the prior
year due primarily to an increase in average debt outstanding of $235
million as a result of additional borrowings associated with the ac-
quisition of the four NBC stations. An increase in the Company’s
average effective rate of 74 basig points to 6.57% was attributable
o year-over-year changes in LIBOR {which influences interast rates
on the Company's revolving credit facility) and also contributed to the
rise in interest expense. .

In the third quarter of 2006, the Company entered into three
interest rate swaps (where it pays a fixed rate and receivas a fleating
rate) tc manage interest cost and cash flows associated with vari-
able interest rates, primarity short-term changes in LIBOR, not to
trade such instruments for profit or loss. These interest rate swaps

are cash flow hedges with notional amounts tetaling $300 million
and maturities of either three or five years. Changes in cash flows
of the interest rate swaps offset changes in the interest payments
on the Company's $300 million bank term loan. These swaps ef-
fectively convert the Company’s variable rate bank term loan to fixed
rate debt with a weighted average interest rate approximating 6.4%
at December 31, 2006. Toward the end of the first quarter of 2004,
the Company had twe swaps with notional amounts totaling $100
million which matured, leaving two remaining swaps with notional
amounts of $50 million each, which matured in the first quarter of
2005. These interest rate swaps were cash flow hedges that effec-
tively converted the covered portion of the Company's variable rate
debt to fixed rate debt,

Income taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate on income from continuing op-
erations was approximately 37%, 38% and 37% in 20086, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The reduced yoar-to-date tax rate in 2006 was
primarily due to increased fuel credits generated by SP Newsprint ag
well as the absence of the gain from the 2005 sale of the Company’s
20% interest in Denver which had a relatively higher effective rate.
The 2005 increase was primarity driven by the Denver gain. See
Note 1 regarding the pending adoption of Interpretation No. 48, Ac-
counting for Uncertainty int Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASE
Staterment No. 109,

LIQUIDITY

In June 2008, the Compary amended certain provisicns of its $1
hillion revolving credit facility to lower borrowing margins and extend
its maturity into 2011, In the third Quarter of 2008, it also entered into
a five-year $300 million variable-rate bank term loan agreement with
essentially the same syndicate of barks and that has the same lim-
ited covenants as its revalving credit facility {together the "Facilities™.
The Company drew down the full bank term loan and redeemed its
$200 million senior notes which Matured on September 1. 2006; the
remainder was used to pay down revolver debt, As shown in the
following table, at the end of 2008 there were borrowings of $505
milion outstanding under the revolving credit facility and $300 mil-
lion outstanding urder the term loan, The Company also had $95
million in debt as a result of consolidating certain variable interest
entities (VIEs) in which it has controlling financial interest by virtue of
certain real property leases. The Cempany anticipates purchasing
the facilities by using existing capacity under its revolving credit facil-
ity when the debt associated with the VIEs matures in the firgt quarter
af 2007. The Facilities have both interest coverage and leverage
ratic covenants. These covenants, which involve debt levels, interest
expense, and EBITDA (a measure of cash earmings as defined in
the revolving credit agreement), can affect the Company’'s maximum
borrowing capacity under the Facilities. The Company was in com-
pifance with all covenants throughout the year and expects to remain
in compliance going forward.

The Company expects nat cash flows from operations over the
naxt year to provide it with sufficient resaurces to manage working
capital needs, pay dividends, and finance capital expenditures: it
will look to the unused portion of its credit facilities, if necessary, to
fund new growth opportunities, Major capital expenditures in 2007
will include new television studios at the Company's Myrile Beach
and Augusta stations, as well as press and production projects at
the Company's Publishing operaticns in Lynchburg and Winston-
Salem.

The Company typically generates strong net cash from opera-
tions. In 2008, the Company used cash genetated from Operating
activities and from financing activities, along with proceeds of $135
million generated from the sale of certain CBS stations, to purchase
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four NBC-affiliated television stations and a small weekly newspaper
for a combined $611 million and to make capital expenditures of
$94 million. Additionally, the Company made a $° 5 million contribu-
tion to its retirement plan and paid dividends to stockholders of $21
milion. The Company’s philasophy is to use excess cash flow to
repay debt, which has the effect of strengthening the balance sheet.
With the absence of major acquisitions from 2001 to 2004, the
Company executed this philosophy and aggressively reduced debt

in those years. A stronger balance sheet enhances the Company's
abitity to qualify for favorable terms under its existing revolving credit
facility, negotiate beneficial terms for new borrowing facilities, and
produces the financial fiexibility to take advantage of attractive stra-
tegic apporiunities.

The Company does not have materia) off-balance sheet arange-
ments. The table that follows shows long-term debt and other speci-
fied obligations of the Company:

iin miflions) Payments Due By Periods
2008 2010 2012 and

Cantractual obligations Total 2007 2009 2011 beyond
Long-term debt:

Revching credit facility $ 5050 3 - 3 - $ 5050 $ ---

Term loan facility 300.0 .- -- 300.0 --

Borrowings of VIES 95.3 95.3 -- .-

Other 16.0 18.0
Operating leases’ 351 7.0 104 7.3 10.7
Broadcast film rights? 80.2 16.9 378 235 20
Estimated benefit payments from Company assets® 715 5.5 11.9 138 40.3
Purchase obligations® 2117 147 .4 36.1 17.4 10.8
Total specified obligations $ 13148 $ 2881 S 859 3 8670 S 63.8

Y Mirimum rental commitments under noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year.

2 Broadcast film nghts include doth recorded short-term and long-term liabilities for programs which have been produced and unrecorded commitments 10

purchase film rights which are not yet available for broadcast.

3 Actuarially estimated benefit payments under pension and other benefit plans expected to be fundad directly from Comparny assets through 2016.

a |ncludes: 1) all current liabilities not otherwise reportod in the table that will require cash settlement, 2) significant purchase commitments for fixed assets, and

3) significant non-ordinary course contract-based ob igations.

OUTLOOK FOR 2007

In an odd-numbered year such as 2007, tte Company will be
challenged to replace certain significant sources of revenue, most
notably in the Broadcast Division. The Company faces the daunting
task of replacing more than $50 million in Political revenues. The
Broadcast Division has developed plans to drive new revenue growth
and creale operating efficiencies through new business inifiatives.
optimization of its digital capacity and cost savings garnered from
the centralization of certain production functions; however, & shortfall
from the prior year is still anticipated. Newsprint prices are expected
to decline in 2007 and raw material costs have risen sharply in re-
cent months, all of which has the potential 1o significantly impact the
Cormpany’s share of SP Newsprint's results. Interest expense will rise
due to the higher level of horrowings associated with the NBC ac-
quisition. The Publishing Division is optimistic that a rebound in ad-
vertising in the second half of the year coupled with lower newsprint
prices will enable it to surpass 2006 operating profits. The Company
looks forward to the continued integration of th new NBC stations
into the Division's existing framework, as well as to a better prefit
contripution mix between the Broadcast and Publishing operations.
The Company plans to strengthen its client base and increase long-
term shareholder value through strategic initiatives, while looking to
expand ils reach across the Southeast in a complementary and dis-
ciplined fashion.

——/

Certain statements in this annual report that are not historical
facts are “forward-looking” staterments, as that term is defined by the
federal securities laws. Forward-looking statements include state-
ments refated to pending transactions and contractual cbligations,
critical accounting estimates and assumptions. the impact of new
accounting standards and the Internet, and expectations regard-
ing acquisitions and dispositions, newsprint prices, pension and
post-retirement plans. acdvertising levels and the effects of changes
to FCC reguiations. Forward-looking statements, including those
which use words such as the Company “helieves,” “anticipates.”
“expects,” “ostimates.” “intends,” “projects,” “plans,” ‘“hopes” and
similar words, are made as of the date of this filing and are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materiafly from those expressed in or impliect by such statements.

These forward-looking statements shouid be considered in fight
of vanious important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from estimates or projections including, without limitatiori:
changes in advertising demand, changes to pending accounting
standards, changes in circulation levels, changes in refationships
with broadcast networks, the avadability and pricing of newsprint,
fluctuations in interest rates, changes in energy costs, the perfor-
mance of pension plan assets, health care cost trends, reguiatory
rulings including those related to ERISA and tax law, natural disas-
ters, and the effects of new credit facilities, acguisitions, investments
and dispositions on the Company's results of operations and its fi-
nancial condition.
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Report of Management on Media General, Inc.’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Marnagement of Media General, Inc., {the Company) has assessed the Caompany's internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006, based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Control ~ Integrated Framework” issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management believes that as of
December 31, 2006, the Company’s system of internal contral over financial reporting was properly designed and operating sffectively based
upon the specified criteria.

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Compa-
ny's internal control aver financial reporting is comprised of policies, procedures and reports designed to provide reascnable assurance, to the
Company's management and board of directors, that the financial reporting and the preparation of financial staterments for external purposes
has been handied in accardance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) govern records to accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in ac-
cordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable safeguards against or timely detection of material
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets.

Internal Gentrels over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all misstatements. Additionally, projections as to the effectivenass of
controls to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may not continue to operate at their current effectiveness levels due to changes in
personnel or in the Company’s operating envircriment.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm that audited the Company’s consolidated financial statements, has
issued an attestation report on management'’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting which is included elsewhere
in this annual report.

January 30, 2007

It bl Sl e

Marshall N. Morton John A, Schauss 0. Reid Ashe Jr.
President and Vice President - Finance Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating Officer




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Media General, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Media General, Inc.’s Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, that Media General, Inc. maintained effective internal control aver financial reporting as of Decermber 31, 20086,
based on criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsaring Organizations of the Tread-
way Commission {the COSO criteria). Media General, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial repanting. Our respensibility is to express an opinion on
management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Caompany's internal control over financial reporiing based cn our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audi to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reperting
was maintained in all material respects. Our avdit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such cther proce-
dures as we censidered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finan-
cial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permnit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect missiatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our cpinion, management’s assessment that Media General, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of De-
cember 31, 2006, is fairly stated. in all material respects, based on the COSC criteria. Also, in our apinion, Media General, Inc. mainiained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated balance sheets of Media General, Inc., as of December 31, 2006, and December 25, 2005, and the related consolidated staterments of
operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31. 2008, and our report dated

January 30, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Sanct ¥ LLP

Richmond, Virginia
January 30, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Media General, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Media General, Inc.. as of December 31, 2006, and December 25,
2005, and the related consoiidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period
ended December 31, 2006, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's managemerit. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

Pension and other postretirement plans to comply with the accounting provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 158,
Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirerment Plans.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2005 the Company changed its methed of accounting for cerain indefi-
nite-lived intangible assets to comply with the accounting provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-108, Use of the Residual Method
to Value Acquired Assets Other Than Goodwill,

Banct ¢ LLP
Richmond, Virginia

January 30, 2007




Consolidated Statements of Operations
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, December 25, December 26,
2006 2006 2004
(i thousands, except per share amounts) (53 weeks)
Revenues $ 083,189 $  B78.377 $ 859,516
QOperating costs:
Production 420,368 372,453 356,467
Selling, general and administrative 350,246 318341 298,053
Depreciation and amortization 71,086 61,971 60,408
Total operating costs 841,710 752,765 714,928
Operating income 141,479 123,612 144,588
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (48.505) (29,408) (31.082)
Investment income - unconsolidated affiiates 10,598 1,119 1,551
Gain on sale of investment in The Denver Post Corporation - 33.270
Other, net 323 2,454 7,477
Total other income (expense) (37,584) 7.435 {22,054)
Income from continuing cperations before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principte 103,895 131,047 122,534
Income taxes 38,493 49,934 45,338
Income from centinuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle 665,402 81,113 77.196
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued cperations (net of income taxes of $1,669 in
2006, $799 in 2005 and $1,755in 2004) 2611 1,298 2,989
Net gain on sale of discontinued aperations {net of income taxes of
$6.748) 11,029 - -
Cumuiative effect of change in accounting principle {net of income tax benefit
of $190,730) - (325,453 -
Net income (10ss) 8 79,042 S (243.042) $ 80,185
Earnings (loss} per common share:
Ineome from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle R 2.77 3 3.45 g 3.30
income from discontinued operations 0.58 0.05 0.13
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (13.83)
Net income (loss) $ 3.35 3 {10.33) ] 3.43
Earnings (loss) per common share - assurming dilution:
income ‘rom continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle % 2.75 % 3.40 $ 3.25
Income from discontinued operations Q.57 0.05 0.13
Cumu'ative effect of change in accounting principle - (13.63} -
Net income (loss) b 332 b (10.18) $ 3.38

Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements begin on page 36.




Consolidated Balance Sheets
MEDIA GENERAL. INC.

ASSETS
December 31, December 25,
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts) 2006 2005
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents 3 11,930 8 14,977
Accounts receivable {(less allowance for doubtful accounts 2006 - $6,568: 2005 - £5,891) 138,538 117,638
tnventories 9.650 7.808
Other 41,830 33,649
Assets of discontinued operations - 115,100
Total current assets 202,748 289,172
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 84,854 83,227
Other assets 71,117 57,377
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land 37.580 29,571
Buildings 294 659 266,012
Machinery and equipment 571,034 501,017
Construction in progress 27,247 37.766
Accumulated depreciation {440.471) (414,255)
Net property, plant and equipment 490,049 420,111
Excess of cost over fair value of net identifiable assets of acquired businesses 935,023 645,437
FCC licenses and other intangibles 721,437 480,030
Total assets $ 2505228 $ 1,975354

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterents begin on page 36.
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

December 31,

December 25,

2006 2005
Current labilities:
Accounts payable % 34,292 5 26,414
Accrued expenses and other liabllities 92,712 81,719
Income taxes payable 4,516 -
Liabilities of discontinued operations - 3,819
Total current liabilities 131,520 112,052
Long-term debt 821,000 389,984
Barrowings of consolidated variable interest entities 95,320 95,320
Deferred income taxes 281,670 308,129
Other liabilities and deferred credits 238,358 154,043
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock ($5 cumulative convertible), par value $5 per share:
authorized 5,000,000 shares; none outstanding
Common stock, par value $5 per share:
Class A, authorized 75,000,000 shares; issued 23,556,472 and 23,490,696 shares 117,782 117,453
Class B, autherized 600,000 shares; issued 555,992 shares 2,780 2,780
Additional paid-in capital 55,173 44,856
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized loss on equity securities (706) (843)
Urrealized loss on derivative contracts (5,129) (3,551)
Pension and postretirement {105.413) {80,224)
Retained earnings 872,873 815,365
Total stockhotders' equity 937,360 915,826
Total liakilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,505,228 $ 1875354

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments begin on page 36.




34

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

MEDIA GENERAL, INC.

Accumulated
Additional Other
Class A Common Stock Paid-in - Comprehensive Retained
fin thousands, except shares and per share amournits) Shares Class A Class B Capital  Income (Loss) Earnings Total
Batance at December 28, 2003 22,989,506 S 114947 $ 2780 5 22925 S (50,984} $1.017.793 $1.107.481
Net income - - 80,185 80,185
Unrealized loss on equity securities {net of deferred tax
benefit of $742) - {1,276) (1,276}
Unrealized gain on derivative contracts {net of deferred
taxes of $2,147) - - 3,786 - 3.786
Minimum pension liability (net of deferred tax benefit of
$1,248) - (2,178) - 2178
Comprehensive income 80,517
Cash dividends o shareholders (S0.80 per share) - - (18.955) {18.555)
Exercise of stock options 228,868 1,144 - 871 - 9,855
Perfarmance accelerated restricted stock - 2,262 - - 2,262
Income tax benefits relating to restricted shares and
exercised options - 2.036 2.036
Other 11,735 59 725 {191) 593
Balance at December 28, 2004 23,230,709 116,150 2,780 36,659 {50.652) 1,078,832 1,183,769
Net loss - - (243,042 (243,042)
Unrealized loss on equity securities {net of deferred tax
benefit of $1,747) - (3.065) (3.065)
Unrealized gain on derivative contracts {net of deferred
taxes of $1,390) - 2,421 - 2,421
Minimum pension liability (net of deferred tax benefit of
$7.837) - - {13.322) {13.322)
Comprehensive income {loss) (257.008)
Cash dividends to shareholders (50.84 per share} - - (20.163) {20,163)
Exercise of stock options 111,564 558 - 4,726 5,284
Performance accelerated restricted stock 146,520 733 2,523 3.256
Income tax benefits relating to restricted shares and
exercised options - 811 - - B11
Other 2,503 12 - 137 - [272) (123}
Balance at December 25, 2005 23,490,696 117,453 2,780 44,856 64,618) 815,355 915,826
Net income - - 79,042 79,042
Unrealized loss on equity securities (et of deferred tax
beneiit of $176) - - (309) (309}
Reclassification of loss included in net income (net of
deferrad tax benefit of $254) - - 446 - 446
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts [net of deferreg
tax benefft of $899) - (1,578) - {1,578}
Minimum pension liability {net of deferred taxes of $5,359) - - 10,048 10,048
Comprehensive income 87,649
Pension and post retirement adoption (SFAS #158) (net
of defarred tax benefit of $31 ATT) - - {65,237) - (55.,237)
Cash dividends 1o shareholders (30.88 per sharg} - - - (21,180) {21,180
Exercise of stock options . 55,700 279 - 1,324 - - 1,603
Stock option expense - - 5617 - - 5617
Performance accelerated restricted stock - - 2,627 - - 2.627
Income tax benefits relating to restrictad shares ang
exercised options - 306 306
Other 10,076 5¢ 243 (344) 149
Balance at December 31, 2006 23,556,472 $ 117,782 $ 2780 8 55173 § (11,248 S 872673 S 837.360

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statemenits begin on page 36.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31,

December 25,

December 26,

2006 2005 2004
{in thousands) (53 weeks)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 79,042 $ (243.042) $ 80,185
Adjustrments to reconcile net income (loss):
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 325,453 -
Depreciation 47,791 43,296 43,543
Amortization 24,842 24,673 22,493
Deferred income taxes 11,178 7,241 28,376
Pravision for doubtful accounts 5,680 5,866 4,365
investment income - unconsolidated affiliates (10,598} (1,119) (1,551)
Net gain on sale of certain CBS stations (11,029 - -
Net gain on sate of Denver investment {19,391} -
Write-down of investrment 700 - -
Gain on settlement - 6,109)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Retirement plan contributions {15,000) {15,000) (35,014)
Retirement plan accrual 16,543 14,233 8.486
Income taxes payable 711 (23,431} {1,000}
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (1,689) (9,412) 4,437
Other, net 9,920 {11,579) {9,823)
Net cash provided by operating activities 158,059 101,788 138,388
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures {93,896) (74,424) (37.835)
Purchases of businesses {611,385) (6,676)
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations and investment 135,111 45,850
Distribution from unconsolidated affiliate 2,000
Other, net (2,853) 4,573 (764)
Net cash used by investing activities {571,023) {30,677) (38,599)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in debt 1,459,000 344,000 313,500
Repayment of debt {1,027,984) (391,976) (407 ,509)
Debt issuance costs {(1,780) {3.793)
Cash dividends paid {21,180} (2C,163) (18,955)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 1,603 5,284 9,855
Other, net 268 BN 2,568
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 409,817 (65,957) {100,541)
Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash eguivalents (3,047) 5,154 (752)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of vear 14,877 9,823 10,575
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8 11,830 $ 14977 $ 9,823

Notes 1o Consgolidaled Financial Stalements begin on page 36.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in December,
Results for 2006 are for the 53-week period ended Decernbar 31,
2008, while results for 2005 and 2004 are for the 52-week periods
ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively.

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of
Media General, Inc., subsidiaries more than 50% owned, and certain
variable interest entities for which Media General, Inc., is the primary
beneficiary (collectively the Company). Al significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The equity method
of accounting is used for investments in companies in which the
Company has significant influence: generally, this represents invest-
ments comprising approximately 20 to 50 percent of the voting stock
of companies and certain partnership interests. Other investments
are generally accounted for using the cost method.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S,
generally accepted accounting principies requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company
reevaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Presentation
Certain prior-year financial information has been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

Revenue recognition

The Company's principal sources of revenue are the sale of ad-
vertising in newspapers, the sale of newspapers to individual sub-
scribers and distributors, and the sale of airtime on television sta-
tions. In addition, the Company sells advertising on its newspaper
and television websites and portals, and derives revenues from other
online activities, Advertising revenue is recognized when advertise-
ments are published, aired or displayed, or when related advertis-
ing services are rendered. Newspaper advertising contracts, which
generally have a term of one year or less, may provide rebates or
discounts based upon the volume of advertising purchased during
the terms of the contracts. Estimated rebates and discounts are
recorded as a reduction of revenue in the pericd the advertisement is
dispiayed. This requires the Company 10 make certain estimates re-
garding future advertising volurmes. Estimates are based on various
factors including historical experience and advertising sales trends,
These estimates are revised as necessary based on actual volume
realized. Subscription revenue is recognized on a pro-rata basis over
the term of the subscription.  Amounts received from customers in
advance are deferred until earned,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in excess of curent cperating needs is invested in various
short-term instruments camied at cost that approximates fair vaiue,
Those short-term investments having an original maturity of three
monihs or less are classified in the balance sheet as cash equivalents.

Derivatives
Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the

balance sheet at fair value. If a derivative is 3 hedge, a change in
its fair value is either offset against the change in the fair value of the
hedged item thraugh earnings, or recognized in Other Comprehen-
sive Income (OCH until the hedged item is recognized in earnings.
Any difference between the fair value of the hedge and the item be-
ing hedged, known as the ineffective portion, is immediately recog-
nized in earnings in the line item “Other. net” during the period of
change. For derivative instruments that are designated as cash flow
hedges. the effective portion of the change in value of the derivative
instrument is reported as a component of the Company’s OCI and
is reclassified into earnings (interest expense for interest rate swaps
and newsprint expense for newsprint swaps) in the same period or
periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. For
derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments, the
gain or Ioss is recognized in the Company’s current earnings dur-
ing the perfod of change. Derivative instruments are carried at fair
value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in the applicable line item
“Other assets™ or “Other liabilities and deferred credits™.

Accounts receivabie and concentrations of credit risk

Media General is a diversified communications company which
sells products and services to a wide variety of customers located
principally in the southeastern United States. The Company’s trade
receivables result from its publishing, broadcast and interactive
media operations. The Company routinely assesses the financial
strength of significant customers, and this assessment, combined
with the large number and geographic diversity of its customer base,
limits its concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables, The
Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on
both the aging of accounts at period end and specific allocations for
certain customers.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of raw materials (primarity news-
print) and broadcast equipment, and are valued at the lower of cost
or market using the specific identification method,

Self-Insurance

The Company self-insures for certain employee medical and dis-
ability income benefits, workers' compensation costs, as well as au-
tomobile and general liability claims. The Company’s responsibility for
workers' compensation and auto and general liability claims is capped
at a certain dollar level (generally $250 thousand 1o 8500 thousand,
depending on clam type).  Insurance liabilities are calculated on an
undiscounted basis based on actual claim data and estimates of in-
curred but not reported claims. Estimates for projected settlements
and incurred but not reported claims are based on development fac-
tors, including historical trends and data, provided by a third party.

Broadcast film rights

Broadcast film rights consist principally of rights to broadcast
syndicated programs, sports and feature films and are stated
at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Program
rights and the corresponding contractual obligations are record-
ed as other assets (based upon the expected use in succeeding
years) and as other liabilities {in accordance with the payment
terms of the contract) in the Consolidated Balance Sheets when
programs become available for use. Generally, program rights
of one year or less are amortized using the straight-line method:
program rights of longer duration are amortized using an acceler-
ated method based on expected usefu! life of the program.




Property and depreciation

Plant and equipment are depreciated, primarily on a straight-line
basis, over their estimated useful lives which are generally 40 years
for buildings and range from 3 te 30 years for machinery and equip-
ment. Depreciation deductions are computed by accelerated meth-
ods for income tax purposes. Major renovations and improvements
and interest cost incurred during the construction period of major
additions are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and
minor renovations are charged to expense as incurred.

Intangible and other long-lived assets

Intangibles consist of goodwilt fwhich is the excess of purchase
price over the net assets of businesses acquired), FCC licenses,
subscriber lists, network affliations, other broadcast intangibles,
intellectual property, and trademarks. Indefinite-lived intangible as-
sets are not amortized, but finite-lived intangibles are amortized by
the straight-line method over periods ranging from 1 to 25 years.
Internal use software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life, not to exceed 5 years.

When indicators of impairment are present, management evalu-
ates the recoverability of long-lived tangible and finite-lived intangible
assets by reviewing current and projected profitability using undis-
counted cash flows of such assets. Annually, or more frequenily
if impairment indicators are present, management evaluates the
recoverability of indefinite-lived intangibles by reporting unit using
estimated discounted cash flows to determine their fair value.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with
SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires rec-
ognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future
tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial
statements or tax returns.

Comprehensive income

The Company's comprehensive income consists of net income,
pensicn and postretirement related adjustments, unrealized gains
and losses on certain investments in equity securities (including re-
classification adjustments), and changes in the value cf derivative
contracts as well as the Company's share of Other Comprehen-
sive Income from its investments accounted for under the equity
method.

Recent accounting prenouncements

In July 2008, the FASB issued /nterpretation No. 48, Accounting
for Uncertainty in Incorme Taxes — an interpretation of FASB State-
ment No. 108. This interpretation requires that income tax posi-
tions recognized in an entity's tax returns have a more-likely-than-not
chance of being sustained prior to recording the related tax benefit
in the financial statements. Tax benefits would be derecognized if
information became available which indicated that it was more-likely-
than-not that the position would nct be sustained. The Company
will adopt this interpretation in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The
Company has substantially completed its analysis of the interpreta-
tion and does not expect it 10 have a material impact on its financial
position. '

In September 20086, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (FAS 157), which establishes a common
definition for fair value under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and creates a framawork for measuring fair value. The
FASB believes that the new standard will make the measurement of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fair value more consistent and comparable and improve disclosures
about those measures. FAS 157 is effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluat-
ing the requirements and future impact of FAS 157 on its financial
statements.

Note 2: Acquisitions, Dispositions and Discontinued
Operations

The Company completed the acquisition of four NBC owned
and operated television stations in the third quarter of 2006 for
%609 miflion, including transaction costs. This transaction was ac-
counted for as a purchase and has been included in the Company’s
consolidated results of operations since its date of acquisition, The
stations acquired were: WNCN in Raleigh, North Carolina, WCMH
in Columbus, Chio, WVTM in Birmingham, Alabama, and WJAR in
Providence, Rhode Island. The Company financed the acquisition of
these NBC stations initially using existing capacity under its $1 billicn
bank facility; it subsequently issued new bank term debt {see Note 5)
and completed the sale of several CBS television stations including
WIAT in Bimingham, Alabama, as it had agreed to do when it was
granted FCC approval for the acquisition. Net proceeds from these
activities were used to reduce borrowings under the Company's $1
billion bank facility. The acquisiticn added the key Raleigh-Durham
market to the Company's southeastern footprint, it also added
larger stations in growing markets to the Company's portfolio which
is expected to enhance margins in the Broadcast Division and bet-
ter balance the contribution to overall revenues and profits from the
Company’s Broadcast and Publishing operations. Purchase price
was allocated to the assets acqguired and liabilities assumed based
on appraisals of estimated fair values as follows:

{in thousands)

Working capital $ 16857
Fixed assets 39,000
FCC licenses 212,827
Network affiliation agreements 44,000
Advertiser backlog 490
Trade / domain names 1,760
Deferred taxes 14,067
Excess of cost over fair value 287,585
Postretirement and other liabilities {7.322)

Total purchase price $ 609,264

The network affiliation and advertiser intangible assets are amor-
tizable with lives of 15.5 years and 1 year, respectively. The excess
of cost over fair value (all of which is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes), FCC licenses, and trade / domain names have indefinite
lives and are not subject to amortization.

The following summary presents the Company's unaudited pro
forma consclidated results of operations for the years ended De-
cember 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, as if the acquisition of
the four television stations from NBC had heen completed as of the
beginning of each period presented. The pro formas do not purport
to be indicative of what would have cccurred had the acquisition
actually been made as of such date, nor are they indicative of results
which may occur in the future.




38

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended

December 31, Dacember 25,
{in thousands, except per share amourts) 2006 2005
Revenues S 1.034.183 $ 978,837
Income from continuing operations before cumutative effect of change in accounting principle S 61,203 71,687
Income tfrom discontinued operations 2,611 1,298
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 11,029 -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - {325.453)
Net income (loss) S 74,843 S (252,468)
Earnings (loss) per commen share - assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations hefore cumulative effect of change of accounting principle 3 2.57 5 3.00
Discontinued operations, including 2006 gain on sale of $0.46 per share 0.57 .05
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (13.63)
Net income (loss) S 3.14 $ {10.58)

In the second half of 20086, the Company sold KWCH in Wichita,
Kansas (including that station's three satellites), WIAT in Birmingham,
Alabarma, WDEF in Chattanooga, Tennessee, and KIMT in Mason
City, lowa, to three different buyers. Gross proceeds from the dives-
tures were $135 million, including working capital. The Company
facilitated these transactions as a tax-deferred, like-kind exchange in
conjunction with the acquisition of the four NBC stations; net after-
tax proceeds of $126 milion were used for debt repayment. The
results of these stations as well as their assaciated web sites hava
been presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Shest for 2005 and in the Statements of Op-

{In thousands)

Revenues

Costs and expenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxes

Income from discontinued operations

Note 3: Intangible Assets

The Company adopted EITF Topic D-108 at the beginning of
fiscal 2005. D-108 requires the use of a direct mathod for valuing all
intangible assets other than goodwill. The Company had used the
residual value method, g commonly used method at the time. to value
the FCC licenses purchased in conjunction with acquisitions made
in 1997 and 2000. It had also recorded goodwill, primarily related to
delerred taxes, as part of these transactions. In connection with the
adoption of D-108, the Company eliminated the distinctian between
gooawill and FCC license intangible assets that were recorded as
part of these prior acquisitions by reclassifying $190.3 million from
goodwill to FCC licenses. Concurrent with the adoption, the Com-
pany increased the carrying amount of FCC license intangible as-
sets by an additional $111.5 million with a corresponding increase to
deferred tax fiabilities. There was NG impact on impairment results
previously reported. Further, the Company valued its FCC licenses
using & direct method discounted cash flow model and assump-
tions that included the concept that cash flows associated with FCC
ficenses are imited to those cash flows that could be expected by an

erations for all periods. Depreciation and amortization of assets sold
ceased during the second quarter of 2006. The net after-tax gain of
$11 miilion that resulted from these three transactions is shown on
the face of the Consolidated Statements of Operations on the line
"Net gain on sale of discontinued Operations (net of income taxes).”
Certain of the sale transactions remain subject to customary post-
closing adjustments. The following results have been presented as
income from discontinued cperations in the accompanying Consoli-
dated Statermnents of Operations for the years ended December 31,
2006, December 23, 2005, and December 26, 2004:

2006 2005 2004

$ 32,078 $ 41,559 $ 40,904
27,798 39,462 36.160
4,280 2,097 4,744
1.669 798 1,755

§ 261 $ 1,298 $ 2989

average market participant. In contrast, the residual value method
formerly used by the Company included other elements of cash
flows which contributed to station value. The resuits of this direct
method were then compared to the carrying value of FCC licenses
(including the reclassified amounts) on a station-by-station basis and
a $325.5 million write-down, net of income tax benefit, was recorded
as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in 2005.

In December 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission
indicated that netwark affiliation intangibles should not have indefinite
lives. At that time, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
performed an impairment test of its network affiliations (no impair-
ment was indicated), assigned a 40-year life based on its good re-
lationships with its networks and its long history of renewing these
agreements, and initiated amortization. Effective at the beginning of
the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company reevaluated the remaining
useful fife of these assets and determined that the life should be 25
years because this was deemed to be the length of time before a
material medification of the uncerlying centract would occur.




The Consolidated Statements of Operations include recorded
amortization expense from continuing operations for finite-lived in-
tangibles of $18.2 million, $16.3 million and $14.5 million in 2008,
20056 and 2004, respectively, Currently, intangibles amortization ex-
pense is projected to be approximately $19 milion in 2007, decreas-

As of December 31, 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ing 10 approximatety $17 milion in 2008 and to $13 million in each
of the years of 2009 thru 2011. The following table shows the gross
carrying amount and accumutated amortization for intangible assets
as of December 31, 2006, and December 25, 2005:

As of December 25, 2005

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
{in thousands) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortizing intangible assets
(including netwoerk affiliation, advertiser,
programming and subscriber relationships):
Broadcast £ 268,696 $ 70555 $ 224,207 3 56,334
Publishing 35,141 29,637 34,711 26,5562
Interactive Media 2,570 1,316 2,570 468
Total 3 306,407 $ 101,508 S 261,488 3 83,354
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Goodwill:
Broadcast g 292,460 $ 4,875
Publishing 640,661 638,660
Interactive Media 1,902 1,902
Total goodwill 935,023 645,437
FCC licenses 514,551 301,724
Other 1,087 172
Total $ 1,451,561 $ 947333

Note 4; Investments

The Company's equity method investments include a one-third
partnership interest in SP Newsprint Company (SPNC), a domestic
newsprint manufacturer, and an approximate 18% interest in a limited
partnership investment company, which the Company recognizes on
a three-month lag. In June 2005, the Company sold its 20% inter-
est in The Denver Post Company (Denver), parent company of The
Denver Post, when MediaNews Group, Inc., exercised its option to
purchase the Company’s interest. The $45.9 million selling price was
determined based on independent appraisals of Denver's fair valus.
The Company recorded an after-tax gain of $19.4 million (net of taxes
of $13.9 million) on the sale in 2005.

SP Newsprint Company:

The Company is committed to purchase 40 thousand tons of
newsprint annually from SPNC. In 2008, the Company purchased
approximately 57 thousand tons of newsprint from SPNC at mar-
ket prices, which totaled $34 million and approximated 46% of
the Campany’'s newsprint needs; in 2005 and 2004, the Company
purchased approximately 57 thousand and 58 thousand tons, re-
spectively, of newsprint from SPNC which approximated 42% of the
Company's newsprint needs in each of those years and totaled ap-
proximately $30 milion and $27 milion in 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively. Summarized financial infermation for the Company's invest-
ment in SPNC, accounted for by the equity method, is presented in
the following chart.

{in thousands) 2006 2005
Current assets $ 112,871 $ 116609
Noncurrent assets 393,762 427,057
Current liabilities 60,087 69,357
Noncurrent liabilities 198,651 230,404
{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $ 638,377 $ 584,167 $ 523,973
Gross profit 84,509 50,775 44,986
Net income 31,562 3,114 3,010
Company's equity in net income 10,521 1,038 1,003
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Retained earnings of the Company at December 31, 2006, in-
cluded $29.9 million related to undistributed earnings of unconsoli-
dated affiliates,

The Company has an investment in a company that produces inter-
active entertainment including games which is carried at fair value and
to whom the Company has licensed proprietary game content. During

the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company recognized a $700 thousand
write-down of its investment to reflect its approximate fair value.

Note 5: Long-Term Debt and Qther Financial Instruments
Long-term debt at December 31, 2006, and Decemper 25,
2005, was as foltows:

fin thousands; 2006 2005
Revolving credit facility $ 505,000 $ 180,000
Bank term loan facility 300,000 -
6.96% senior notes, net of discount - 199,984
Borrowings of consolidated variable interest entities 95,320 95,320
Bank lines 16,000 10,0C0
Lang-term debt $ 816.320 $ 485304

In June 2006, the Company amended certain provisions of its $1
billion revolving credit facility to lower borrowing margins and extend
its maturity into 2011, Interest rates under the facility are based on
the Londorn Interbank Gffered Rate (UBOR) plus a margin ranging
from 0.3% to 0.7% (0.7% at December 31, 2008), determined by the
Company’'s leverage ratio, as defined. Under this facility, the Com-
pany pays fees (0.175% at December 31, 2008) on the entire com-
mitment of the facility at a rate also based on its leverage ratio. The
Company's debt covenants require the maintenance of an interest
coverage ralio in addition to the leverage ratio, as defined. In the third
quarter of 2006, the Company entered into a five-year $300 million
variable bank term loan agreement with essentially the same syndi-
cate of banks that provide the aforementioned revolving credit facility:
the Company drew down the full bank term Ican and redeemed its
$200 milian senior notes which matured on September 1, 2006. The
remainder was used to pay down revolver debt. As of December 31,
20086, the Company was in compliance with all covenarts; projec-
ticns indicate that the covenants will continue to be met.

At December 31, 20086, the Company had borrowings of $16 mil-
lion from banic lines due within one year with an interest rate of 5.9%.
Additionally, the Company had $95 million in debt as a result of con-
solidating certain variable interest entities (VIEs) due in March 2007
and has recorded interest on this debt based cn current commercial
paper rates (5.9% at December 31, 2006). See Note 11 for a further
discussion of VIEs. At December 31, 2008, the borrowings from
bank lines as well as the VIE debt were classified as long-term debt

{fn thousands)

in accordance with the Company’s intention and ability to refinance
these obligations on a long-term basis under existing facilities.

Long-term debt maturities during the five years subsequent to
December 31, 2006, aggregating $816.3 million, were §111.3 miillion
in 2007 and $805 milliory in 2011.

In the third quarter of 2006, the Company entered into several in-
terest rate swaps as part of an overall strategy to manage interest cost
and risk associated with variable interest rates, primarily short-term
changes in LIBOR. These interest rate swaps are cash flow hedges
wilth notional amounts iotaling $300 mitllion; swaps with notional
amounts of $100 million will mature in three years and $200 million will
mature in five years. Changes in cash flows of the interest rate swaps
offset changes in the interest payments on the Company's $300 mil-
lion bank term loan, These swaps effectively convert the Company's
variable rate bank term loan to fixed rate debt with a weighted aver-
age interest rate approximating 6.4% at December 31, 2006. Toward
the end of the first quarter of 2004, the Company had two swaps with
notional amounts totaling $100 milion which matured, leaving two
remaining swaps with notional amounts of $50 milion each, which
matured in the first quarter of 2005. These interest rate swaps were
cash flow hedges that effectively converted the covered portion of the
Company's variable rate debt to fixed rate debt.

The table below includes information about the carrying values
and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at
December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005:

2006 2005

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amounts Value Amounts Value

Assels:
Investments
Ligbilities:
Long-term debt:
Revolving credit facility
Bank term loan facility
6.95% senicr notes
Borrowings of consolidated variable interest entities
Bank lines

Interest rate swap agreements

S 4426 $ 4,426 $ 49N $ 4911

505,000 505,000 180,000 180.000
300,000 300.000

- 199,984 201,729

95,320 95,320 95,320 95.320

16.000 16,000 10,000 10,000

5822 5,822 - -




The Company’s investments which have a readily determinable
value and are classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value,
with unrealized gains or losses, net of deferred taxes, reported as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. The interast rate swaps
are carried at fair value based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
the estimated amounts the Company would have received or paid
to terminate the swaps. Fair values of the Company's senior notes
were estimated using discounted cash {flow anatyses based on the
Company's incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrow-
ings. The barrowings under the Company's revolving credit and bank
term loan facilities, bank lines, and Viks approximated their fair value.

Note 6: Business Segments

The Company, located primarily in the southeastern United
States, is a diversified communications company which has three
operating segments: Publishing, Broadcast and Interactive Media.
The Publishing Segment, the Company's largest based on revenue
and segment profit, includes 25 daily newspapers and more than 150
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weekly newspapers and other publications. The Broadcast Segment
consists of 23 network-affiliated broadcast television stations and a
provider of equipment and studio design services. The Interactive
Media Segment consists of all of the Company's online enterprises
and an online advergaming and game development firm.

Managernent measures segment performance based on operat-
ing cash flow (operating income plus depreciation and amortization)
as well as profit or loss from operations before interest, income taxes,
and acquisition related amortization. Amortization of intangibles is
not allocated to individual segments although the intangible assets
themselves are included in identifiable assets for each segment.
Intercompany sales are accounted for as if the sales were at cur-
rent market prices and are eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s reportable segments, which are man-
aged separately and contain operations that have been aggregated
based on similar economic characteristics, are strategic business
enterprises that provide distinct products and services using diverse
technology and production processes.

interactive

{tn thousands) Publishing Broadcast Media Eliminations Total
2006
Consolidated revenues $ 601,144 $ 361,472 g 27179 3 (6,606) $ 983189
Segment operating cash flow $ 144,048 $ 121,869 $ (1,710) § 264207
Allocated amounts:

EEquity in net income of unconsolidated affiliate 77 77

Wirite-down of investment (700) (700)

Depreciation and amortization (24,876} (21,482} {(1,483) (47.,841)

Segment profit (oss) $ 119172 g 100,387 5 {3.816) 215,743
Unallocated amounts:

Interest expense {(48,505)

investrmant income — SP Newsprint 10,521

Acguisition intangibles amortization {18,155)

Corporate expense (39,897)

Other (15712)

Consolidated income from continuing
operations before income taxes ussﬂ

Segment assets $ 966,008 $ 1,288,121 $ 16464 $ 2,270,593
Corporate 234,635

Consolidated assets $ 2,505,228
Segment capital expenditures $ 48,632 § 37421 3 1,823 $ 87876
Corporate 3,698
Discontinued operations 2,322

Consolidated capital expenditures B 93,896

4
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Interactive
{in thousands) FPublishing Broadcast Media Eliminations Total
2005
Consolidated revenues § 587,849 $ 272875 $ 20,415 $ (4,762 $ 876,377
Segment operating cash fiow $ 151,268 $ 82088 $ (2.439) $ 230917
Allocated amounts;
Equity in net income (foss) of unconsolidated affiiates 221 (140) 81
Gain on sale of Denver 33,270 33,270
Depreciation and amortization {22,709) {16,337) {1,429 {40,475)
Segment profit (loss) $ 162,050 & 65751 $ (4,008 223,793
Unallocated amounts:
Interest expense {29,408)
Investment income — SP Newsprint 1,038
Acguisition intangibles amortization {16,329)
Corporate expense (37,785)
Cther (10,262}
Consolidated income from continuing operations
before income taxes and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle $ 131,047
Segment assets $ 944,482 $ 668,168 $ 15,766 $ 1,628,416
Corporate 231,838
Discontinued cperations 115,100
Consolidated assets $ 1,975,354
Segment capital expenditures $ 36548 $ 24,004 $ 1,438 62,080
Corporate 5,393
Discontinued operations 6,051
Consolidated capital expenditures % 74,424
2004
Consolidated revenues $ 566,487 $ 282,823 $ 13,828 $ (3,622 $ 859,516
Segment operating cash flow $ 152,727 $ 100,958 $ (4,656) $ 249,030
Allocated amounts:
Equity in net income {loss) of unconsolidated affiliates 743 (195) 548
Depreciation and amortization (23,370) (15.,865) (1,437} (40,672)
Segment profit (loss) $ 130,100 $ 85004 $ 6,288) 208,906
Unallocated amounts:
nterest expense (31,082
Investment income — SP Newsprint 1,003
Acquisition intangibles amortization (14,460)
Corporate expense {38,732
Other {3,101)
Consolidated income from continuing operations
before income taxes $ 122534
Segment assets $ 936,121 $ 1,086,443 $ 16,283 $ 2,038,847
Corporate 227,936
Discontinued operations 213,552
Consolidated assets $ 2,480,335
Segment capital expenditures $ 17,695 $ 14,128 & 683 32,506
Corporate 2,424
Discontinued operations 2,905
Consclidated capital expenditures $ 37,835
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Note 7: Taxes on Income
Significant components of income taxes from continuing operations are as follows:

{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal $ 24910 $ 39,207 $ 1500
State 2,407 3,486 1,961
Total 27,317 42,693 16,962
Deferred:
Federai 8,298 5,383 25,199
State 2,878 1,858 3177
Total 11,176 7,241 28,376
Income taxes $ 38,493 $ 49,934 $ 45338

Temnporary differences, which gave rise to significant components of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets at December 31, 2006,

and December 25, 2005, are as follows:

{in thousands) 2006 2005
Ceferred tax liabilities:
DCifference between book and tax bases of intangible assets $ 276,736 $ 270,877
Tax over bock depreciation 89,816 92,727
Other 7,666 5313
Total aeferred tax liabilities 374,218 368,917
Deferred tax assets:
Empioyes benefits (32,963) (27 ,424)
Acquired net cperating losses (2,688) {3,047)
Other comprehensive income items (63,793} {36,854)
Other (2,797) (3,650)
Total deferred tax assets (102,239) (70,975)
Deferred tax liabilities, net 271,979 297,942
Deferred tax assets included in other current assets 9,691 10,187
Deferred tax liabilities $ 281,670 $ 308,129

Reconcilation of income taxes computed at the federat statutory tax rate to actual income tax expense from continuing operations is as follows:

fin thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Income taxes compuied at federal statutory tax rate $ 38,363 $ 45866 $ 42,887
Ingrease (reduction) in income 1axes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3435 3,470 3,337
Other {1,305) 598 (B86)
Income taxes $ 38,493 $ 49,934 $ 45338
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The Company paid income taxes of $27.1 million, $51 million and
$14.6 miliion, respectively, net of refunds in 2008, 2005 and 2004,

The Company's federal income tax returns have been examined
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) or closed by statute of limita-
ticns through fiscal year 2003 and all significant issues have been
resolved. Various state returns arg currently under examination by
state tax authorities. The results of examinations are not expacted to
be matertal to the Company's results of operations, financial position
or cash flow.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 contained over 250
provisions, many of which impact the Company in some mariner,
However, the addition of the Qualified Production Activity Deducticn
{QPAD), which has the effect of reducing the corporate income tax
rate for domestic manufacturers, had the most significant impact on
the Company's income tax provision. The QRAD is being phased in
over five years beginning in 2005. The majority of the Company's
publishing operations qualify for this deduction and the provision for
income taxes reflects this deduction.

Note 8 Common Stock and Stock Options

Holders of the Class A common stock are entitled to elect 30%
of the Board of Directors and, with the holders of Class B common
stock, also are entitled to vote on the reservation of shares for stock
awards and on certain specified types of major corporate recrganiza-
tions or acquisitions. Class B common stock can be converted into
Class A common stack on a share-for-share basis at the option of
the holder. Both classes of common stock receive the same divi-
dends per share.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{FASB) issued Statement 123(R), Share-Based Payment, a revision
of SFAS No, 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which
superseded APE Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issusd to
Employees. Statement 123(R) addresses the accounting for share-
based payment transactions in which a company receives employee
services in exchange for equity instruments of the company or li-
abilities that are based on the fair value of the comeany's equity
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity
instruments. This statement requires that share-based transactions

{in thousands, except per share amounts)
Netincome (loss), as reported

Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects

Pro forma net income (loss)

Earnings {loss) per share:

Basic - as reported

Basic - pro forma

Diluted - as reported
Diluted - pro forma

Under the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), stock-
based awards are granted to key employees in the form of nonguali-

be accounted for using a fair-value-based method to recognize non-
cash compensation expense; this expense is recognized ratably over
the requisite service periad, which generally equals the vesting period
of options, and is adjusted for expected forfeitures. It also requires
that the benefits of tax deductions in éxcess of recognized compen-
sation cost {excess tax benefits} be reported as a financing cash flow,
rather than as an operating cash flow, The Company adopted this
standard as of the beginning of 2006 using the modified prospective
method. Results for prior pericds have not been restated.

As a result of adopting Statement 123(R), the Company rec-
ognized non-cash share-hased compensaticn expense of approxi-
mately $5.6 million for 2006 ($3.5 million after-tax) as compared to
no expense recognition under APB 25. Thig expense was included
on the “Selling, general and administrative” line of the consolidated
statement of operations. Basic and difuted eamings per share for
2006 are $0.15 lower than if the Company had continued accounting
for stock options as it did prior to adopting Statement 123(R). As of
Becermber 31, 2006, there was $5.3 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to stock options expected to be recog-
nized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.8 years,
In 2008, the Company alsc reflected $306 thousand of excess tax
benefits as a financing cash flow in its Statermnant of Cash Flows.

Prior to the adoption of Statement 123(R), the Company’s
stock-based employee compensation plans were accounted for in
accordance with APB 25, under which NG compensation expense
was recorded because the exercise price of employee stock op-
ticns equaled the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. Had the Company adopted Statement 123(R) in prier periods,
the impact of that staterment would have approximated the impact
of FAS 123 (as if the fair-value-based recognition provisions of that
statement had been applied) as shown in the foilowing table. The
weighted-average grant date fair values of stock options awarded
in 2005 ($20.59) and 2004 ($25.51) were estimated at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the follow-
ing weighted-average assumptions for 2005 and 2004, respectively:
risk-free interest rates of 4.1% and 3.8%: dividend vields of 1.5%
and 1.4%; volatility factors of 27% ana 36%; and an expected Iife
of 8 years.

Years Ended

2005 2004
$ (243.042) $ 80,185

{4.928) {4.990)
$ {247,970 $ 75195
5 (1033 S 3.43
$  (os4 $ az2
$ (1018 $ 3.38
$ (1039 $ 3.17

fied stock options (Nen-Qualified Stock Option Plan) and non-vested
shares (Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock Plan (PARS)).




The LTIP is administered by the Compensation Committee and per-
mits the grant of share options and shares to its employees for up to
3.5 million shares {of which no mere than 800,000 can be used for
PARS). At December 31, 2006, a combined 266,356 shares were
available for grants of PARS (168,624) and stock options (87,662},
Grant prices of stock options are equal to the fair market value of
the underlying stock on the date of grant. Unless changed by the
Compensation Committee, options are exercisable during the con-
tinued employment of the optionee but not for a pericd greater than
ten years and not for a period greater than one year after termina-
tion of employment; they generally become exercisable at the rate of
one-third each year from the date of grant. For awards granted pricr
to 2006, the optionee may exercise any option in full in the event
of retirement or disability after at least ten years of service with the
Company and after attaining age 55. For awards granted in 2006,
the optionee must be 63 years of age, with ten years of service,
and must be an employee on December 31 in order to be eligitle to
exercise an award upon retirement or disability.

Options to purchase Class A common stock were granted to key
employees under the 1976 and 1987 nongualified stock option plans
pricr to the LTIP. The Company will not make any future awards
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under these two former plans and past awards are not affected. Op-
tions outstanding under the plans are exercisable during the contin-
ued employment of the optionee, but not for a period greater than
ten years after the date of grant for options granted subsequent to
the 1991 amendment {0 the 1987 plan and for a period of not greater
than three years after termination of employment.

The Company valued stock options granted in 2006 using a bi-
nomial lattice valuation model which necessitates the development of
certain key assumptions. The volatility factor was estimated based
on the Company’s historical volatility over the contractual term of the
options. The Company also used historical data to derive the op-
tion's expected life and employee forfeiture rates within the valuation
model. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U. S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the date of grant. The dividend yield is predicated
on the current annualized dividend payment and the average stock
price over the year prior to the grant date. The weighted-average
grant-daie fair value of stock options awarded in 2006 ($15.50} was
estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions: risk-
free interest rate of 4.4%, dividend yield of 1.4%, volatility of 28%,
and an expected life of 6.6 years. The following is a summary of
option activity for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
{In thousands, except per share amounts) Shares Price  Term (in years)” Value
Outstanding-beginning of year 1,651 $ 5536
Granted 559 49.66
Exercised (55} 2877
Forfeited or expired (123) 56.88
Quistanding-end of year 2,032 $ 5443 6.7 $ 318
QOutstanding-end of year less estimated forfeitures 1,964 $ 54.48 6.7 5 318
Exercisaole - end of year 1,218 $ 5426 5.4 8 318

* Excludes 2,400 options which are exercisable during the lifetime of the optionee and 64,000 options which are exercisable during the continued employment

of the optionee and for a three-year period thereatter

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006 was
$0.6 million; cash received from these options exercised was $1.6
million. The actual tax benefit realized from option exercise of share-
based payment arrangements totaled $235 thousand in 2008.

Certain executives are eligible for Performance Accelerated Re-
stricted Stock (PARS), which vests over a ten-year period. If certain
earnings targets are achieved (as defined in the plan) vesting may
accelerate to either a three, five or seven year period. The recipient
of PARS must remain employed by the Company during the vest-
ing period. PARS is awarded at the fair value of Class A shares on
the date of the grant. PARS expense continues to be recognized
based upon expectations of meeting pre-set performance targets.
At December 31, 20086, the following shares remain unvested under
the terms of the plan: 154,200 shares granted in 2005 at $63.18,
145,600 shares granted in 2003 at $56.03, 110,600 shares granted
in 2001 at $51.41, and 59,800 shares granted in 1999 at $47.91. All
restrictions on PARS granted prior 1o 1999 have been released. The
Company did not issue any new PARS in January of 2007.

As of the end of 20086, there was $12.9 million of total unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to PARS under the LTIP; that cost
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of ap-
proximately 5 years. The amount recorded as expense in 2008, 2005
and 2004 was $2.6 million, $3.3 milion and $2.3 million, respectively.

Each non-employee member of the Beoard of Directors of the
Company participates in the Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan.
The plan provides that each non-employee Director shall receive half
of his or her annual compensation for services to the Board in the
form of Deferred Stock Units (DSUY; each Director additionally may
elect to receive the balance of his or her compensation in either cash,
DSU, or a split between cash and DSU. Other than dividend credits,
defarred stock units de not entitle Directers to any rights due to a
holder of common stock. DSU account balances may be settled
after the Director's retirement date by a cash lump-sum payment,
a single distribution of common stock, or annual installments of ei-
ther cash or common stock over a peried of up to ten years. The
Company records expense annually based on the amount of com-
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pensation paid to each director as well as recording an adjustment
for changes in fair value of DSU. In 2006 and 2005, the Company
recognized benefits of $0.4 million and $0.2 milion, respectively, un-
der the plan due to the decrease in fair value of DSU; an expense of
$0.6 million was recognized in 2004,

Note 9: Retirement Plans

The Company has a funded, qualified non-contributory defined
benefit retirernent plan which covers substantially all employees, and
non-contributory unfunded supplemental executive retirement and
ERISA excess plans which supplement the coverage availabie to
certain executives. The Company also has an unfunded plan that
provides certain health and life insurance benefits to retired employ-
ees who were hired prior 1o 1992, The previously mentioned plans
are collectively referred to as the *Plans”. The Company used a mea-
surement date of December 31 for the Plans.

In the second quarter of 2006, the Company announced a rede-
sign of its defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans
as well as the addition of certain new employee bensfit programs.
These changes are expected to reduce the volatility of future pension
expense while continuing to provide competitive retirement benefits
to employees. The changes became effective at the beginning of
2007 and include: freezing the service accrual in the current defined
benefit retirement plan for existing employees (while closing this plan
to new employees), increasing the maximum Company match in the

current 401{k) defined contribution plan to 5% from 4% of an em-
nloyee’s earnings, adding a profit sharing component 1o the 401{k)
plan, and establishing a retiree medical savings account.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158 - Em-
ployer’s Accouriting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postre-
tirement Plans - an amendment of FASB statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R). The objective of FAS 158 is to require that the
funded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement
benefit plans {measured as the difference between the fair value of
plan assets and the benefit obligation) be recognized on the balance
shest as a net asset or net liability. As required, the Company has
adopted this statement and applied it prospectively beginning with
the Company's fiscal 2006 year-end financia! statements, While the
adoption had no sffect on the Cansolidated Statements of Cpere-
tions, unrecognized actuarial amounts were reflected in the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2008, resulting in an $86
million increase to "Other liabilities and deferred credits”, a $31 mil-
lion dacrease in “Deferred income taxes” and a $55 million reduction
to stockholders' equity.

Benefit Obligations

Tha following table provides a recongiliation of the changes in
the Plans’ benefit cbligations (including the retiree medical savings
accounts established in 2007) for the years ended December 31,
2008, and December 25, 2005:

Pansion Benefits Other Benefits

{in thousands} 2006 2005 2008 2005
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year & 417,972 $ 365516 § 32,166 $ 35880
Service cost 14,535 13,796 396 295
Interest cost 25,235 22,440 2,559 1,866
Participant contributions 1,047 599
Plan amendments - 13,210 3,235
Actuarial (gain} loss {4,807} 31,453 10 {6,087)
Acquisition 5,011 -
Benefit payments (15,668} (15,233} (3,284) (3.642)
Benefit obligaticn at end of year & 437,267 $ 417972 $ 50,995 $ 32,166

The accumulated benefit abligation at the end of 2006 and 2005
wags $361 milion and $346 millicn, respectively. The Company's pol-
icy is to fund benefits under the supplemental executive retirement,
excess, and postretirement benefits plans as well as the new retires
medical savings accounts as claims and premiums are paid. As of

December 31, 2006, and December 25, 2005, the benefit obligation
related to the supplemental executive retirement and ERISA excess
plans included in the preceding table was $51.2 milion and $486.1
millicn, respectively. The Plans’ benefit obligations were determined
using the following assumptions:

Pension Benefits Otner Benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate 6.00% 5.80% 5.00% 5.80%
Compensation increase rate 4.00 3.75 4.00 3.75

A 9.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered
health care benefits was assumed for 2006 (9.5% for 2005). This
rate was assumed to decrease gradually each year to a rate of 5%
in 2013 and remain at that level thereafter, These rates can have
a significant effect on the amounts reported for the Company’s

postretirement obligations. A one-percentage point increase or
decrease in the assumed health care trend rates would change
the Company's accumulated postretirement bensfit obligation by
approximately $1 million and the Company’s net periodic cost by
$50 thousand.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the fair value of the Plans’ assets for the years ended December 31, 2006,

and Decerber 25, 2005:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
fin thousands) 2006 2005 2008 2005
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 265,205 $ 249,007 3 - $ -
Actual return on plan assets 31,386 14,770 -
Employer contributions 16,699 16,661 2,727 3,043
Participant contributions - 1,047 539
Benefit payments {15.668) {(15,233) {3.774) (3.642)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 297.622 $ 265,205 $ -8 -

The asset allocaticon for the Company’s funded retirement plan at the end of 2006 and 2005, and the asset allocation range for 2007, by

asset category, are as follows:

Percentage

Asset of Plan Assets

Allocation Range at Year End

Asset Category 2007 2006 2005
Equity securities 55%-75% 73% 73%
Fixed income securities 25%-45% 27% 27%
Total 100% 100%

As plan sponsor of the funded retirement plan, the Company’s
investment strategy is to achieve a rate of return on the plan’s assets
that, over the long-term, will fund the plan’s benefit payments and
will provide for other required amounts in a manner that satisfies all
fiduciary responsibilities. A determinant of the plan’s returns is the
asset allocation policy. The Company's investment policy provides
absolute ranges (85%-75% equity, 25%-45% fixed income) for the
plan’s long-term asset mix. The Company periodically {at least an-
nually) reviews and rebalances the asset mix if necessary. The Com-
pany alsc reviews the plan's overall asset allocation 1o determine the

Pensicn Benefits

proper balance of securities market capitalization, value or growth,
LS. or international, or the addition of other asset classes. Peri-
odically, the Company evaluates each investment manager to deter-
mine if that manager has performed satisfacterily when compared
to the defined objectives, similarly invested portfclios, and specific
market indices.

Funded Status

The following table provides a statement of the funded status of
the Plans at December 31, 2008, and December 25, 2005:

Other Benefits

{tn thousands) 2008 2005 2008 2005
Funded status:
Plan assets less than benefit obligation $ (139,645) $ (152,767) $ {50,995) $ (32,166}
Unregognized pricr-service cost ' 248 - 2,773
Unrecognized actuarial loss ! - 161,825 - 434
Prepaid {accrued) benefit cost $ (139,645) $ 9,308 $ (50,995 $ (28,959)
Amounts recorded in the balance sheet:
Current liabilities $ (1.687) $ - $ (3879 $ -
Noncurrent liabilities (137,978) (85,308} (47,1186) (28.959)
Intangible asset ' - 649 - -
Accumulated other comprehensive income ! - 03,965 - -
Net amount recognized $ (139.,645) $ 9,308 $ (50,995) $ (28,959

T With the 2006 adoption of SFAS #158, these amounts are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as liabilities.
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The following table provides the components of the Company's accumulated othar comprehensive income prior to any deferred tax effects
for fiscal year 2006:

2006
(in thousands) Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Net actuarial loss 3 143,525 3 13
Prior service {credit) cost (259) 14,801
Components of other comprehensive income 3 143,266 g 14,814
The Compary anticipates recognizing $9.6 million of actuarial count established in 2007) by the Company and amounts the Com-
loss and a $1.5 million of prior service cost, both of which are cur- pany expects to receive in Medicare subsidy payments. It reflects
rently in other comprehensive income, as a component of its net benefit payments that are made from the Plans’ assets as well as
periodic cost in 2007, those made directly from the Company’s assets and includes the
participants’ share of the costs, which is funded by participant con-
Expected Cash Flows tributions.  The amounts in the tabie are actuarially determined and
The follawing table includes amounts that are expected to be reflect the Company's best estimate given its current knowledge:
contributed to the Plans (including the retiree medical savings ac- actual amounts could be materially different,
Medicare
Pension Other Subsidy
{in thousands) Benefits Benefits Receipts
Employer Contributions
2007 {expectation) to participant benefits $ 1,667 $ 4,424 $ -
Expected Benefit Payments / Receipts
2007 15,794 4,424 545
2008 16,183 4,748 589
2009 16,700 5.062 832
2010 17,794 5.058 678
2011 18,277 5,352 718
2012-2016 120,269 26,381 4197
Net Periodic Cost
The following table pravides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Plans for fiscal years 2008, 2005, and 2004:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
{In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2008 2005 2004
Service cost $ 14535 $ 13,796 $ 120287 3 396 8 295 $ 396
Interest cost 25,235 22,440 20,841 2,559 1.866 2,059
Expected return on pian assets {25,308) (24,871 {(24,617) - - -
Amortization of prior-service cost 11 209 352 1,182 462
Amortization of net loss 7412 7,078 4,203 - a53 168
Curtailment loss 497 - - - - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 22384 % 188652 $ 13088 $ 4,137 $ 3476 g 28623
As part of purchase accounting for the NBC acquisition, the ment and retiree medical savings account benefits granted to
Company recorded $5.3 million of liabilities related to post-retire- these new empioyees.
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The net periodic costs were determined using the following assumptions:

Other Benefits
20061 2005

Pension Benelits

20086 20056

Discount rate 5.80% 5.90% 5.80% 5.90%
Expected return cn plan assets 8.80 9.00 - -
Compensalion increase rate 3.75 3.50 3.75 3.50

1 Assumption as of the beginning of the year. The Plans were remeasured as of April 30, 2006 in conjunction with the redesign of retirerment benefits using the
following assumptions: discount rate 6.5%, expected return on plan assets 8.5%, and compensation increase rate 4.0%.

The reasonableness of the expected return on the funded re-
tirement plan assets was determined by four separate analyses: 1)
review of 18 years of historical data of portfolios with similar asset
allocation characteristics done by a third party, 2) analysis of 10 years
of historical performance assuming the current portfolic mix and in-
vestment manager structure done by a third party, 3) review of the
Company's actual portfolic perdormance over the past 10 years, and
4) projected portiolio performance, assuming the plan’s asset alloca-
tion range, done by a third party. Net periodic costs for 2007 will use
a discount rate of 6.0%, an expected rate of return on plan assets of
8.5%, and a compensation increase rate of 4.0%.

The “Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modern-
ization Act of 2003" {the Act) established a prescription drug ben-
efit under Medicare, known as “Medicare Part D," and a federal
subsidy to spensors of retires health care benefit plans that are at
least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. The Act reformed
Medicare in such a way that the Company began to recgive sub-
sidy payments beginning in 2006 for continuing retires prescription
drug benefits. In 2004, the Company adopted FASB Staff Posi-
tion 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Impravement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (FSP 106-2), based on guidance available at that time.
Final regulations implementing the Act along with certain interpreta-

tions were issued in early 2005. Based on this definitive guidance,
an additional segment of the Company's retiree population was
determined to be actuarially equivalent. Accordingly, the Company
recorded a $900 thousand benefit in 2005 as a reduction to its
net periodic postretirement benefit cost. However, the Company's
portion of medical claims in recent years had been higher than ex-
pected resulting in additional expense in 2005 that more than offset
the Medicare benefit.

The Company alse sponsors a 401(k) plan covering substanitially
all employess under which the Company matches 100% of panici-
pant pretax contributions up to a maximum of 4% of the employee's
salary in 2006 (maximum match was increased to 5% for 2007). Eli-
gible account balances may be rolled over from a prior employer’s
qualified plan. Contributions charged to expense under the plan
were $8.7 million, $8.2 milion and $7.7 milion in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Note 10: Earnings Per Share

The following chart is a reconciliation of the numeraters and the
denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for in-
come from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle, as presented in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations.

2006 2005 2004
fin thousands, except per Income Shares  Per Share Income Shares  Per Share Income Shares  Per Share
share amounts) {Numerator; (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount {Nurmerator) (Dencminator) Amount
Basic EPS

Income from continuing
operations available to
common stockholders before
cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle

$ 65402 23597 & 277

Effect of Dilutive Securities
Stock options _
Restricted stock and other {54) 187

81,113

23527 § 345 § 77,196 2336 $ 3.30

121 170
(68) 236 (30} 203

Diluted EPS

Income from continuing
operations available to
cormmaon stockhelders plus
assumed conversions before
curnulative effect of change
in accounting principle

$ 65348 23784 § 275

81,045

23884 § 3.40 $ 77.166 23729 $ $325

49
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Note 11: Commitments, Contingencies and Other

Broadgast film rights

Over the next 7 years the Company is committed 1o purchase
approximately $60 million of pregram rights that currently are not
available for broadcast, including programs not yet produced. If such
programs are not produced, the Company's commitment would ex-
pire without obligation.

Capital comrnitments

The Company currently has several significant projects involy-
ing new buildings and press equipment. It also is in the process of
installing a new advertising system in its Publishing Division and re-
placing a centralized trafic system in its Broadcast Division. Remain-
inG comrmitments on these projects at Dacember 31, 2008, totaleg
approximately $25.5 million.

Lease obligations

The Company rents certain facilities and equipment under oper-
ating leases. These leases extend for varying periods of time ranging
from one year to more than twenty years and in many cases contain
renewal options. Total rental expense from continuing oparations
amounted to $8 million in 2006, $6.1 million in 2005 and $5.6 million
in 2004, Mirimum rental commitments under operating leases with
nencancelable terms in excess of one year are as follows: 2007 — $7
millian; 2008 - $5.6 million: 2009 — $4.5 milion; 2010 - g4.2 millicn;
2011 - $3.1 million: subsequent years - $10.7 million.

Newsprint swap

As part of its third Quarter 2000 sale of Garden State Paper, the
Company entered into a seven-year financial newsprint swap agres-
ment with Enron North America Corporation {Enron). In late Novemn-
ber of 2001 the Company terminated the newsprint swap agreement
for reasons including misrepresentations made by Enron at the time
the contract was signed. Enron filed for bankruptcy shortly thereafter,
The Company believed that no further payments were due by either
Party under the agreement. Enron disputed the Company's position,
and in late 2003, filed a claim for damages and certain declaratory
relief, In 2004, the Company settled this matter together with cer-
tain claims that it had made against the Enron bankruptcy estate
for an amount less than it had accrued. Accordingly, the Company
recorded a pre-tax gain of $6.1 million (after-tax $0.16 per diluted
share} in the fourth Quarter of 2004, which is included in Other, net in
the accompanying Statements of Operations.

Interest

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s interest expense re-
lated to continuing operations was $48.5 million (net of $1.0 mil-
lion capitalized), $29.4 rmilion (net of $0.8 million capitalized) and
$31.1 million {ret of $0.2 milion capitalized), respectively, Interest
paid for all operations during 20086, 2005 and 2004, net of amounts
capitalized, was $48.4 million, $23.6 million and $28.5 million, re-
spectivaly,

Cther current assets

Other current assets included program rights of $16 million and
£11.6 million at December 31, 2006, and Decermnber 25, 2005, re-
Spectively.




Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

{in thousands) 2006 2005
Payroll and employee benefits $ 31,878 $ 30,722
Unearned revenug 21,584 21,909
Program rights 16,346 10,756
Interest 3,602 5,802
Other 19,302 12,430

Total $ 92712 $ 81719
Other, net

Cther, net consisted of the following:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Gain on settlement $ - 3 - $ 8,109
Other 323 2,454 1,368
Total 3 323 3 2,454 $ 7,477

Variable Interest Entities

The Gompary consolidates certain Variable Interest Entities
(VEs) in which it has the conirolling financial interest by virtue of
certain real property leases. During 2002, the Company entered
into lease agreements whereby variable interest entities borrowed
approximately $100 milion to refinance existing leased real estate
facilities; the facilities are leased to the Company for a term of up to

five years. The Company may cance! ihe leases by purchasing or
arranging for the sale of the facilites. At December 31, 2006, and
December 25, 2005, the Company had assets of approximately $74
million and $77 million, respectively, related to VIEs (and pledged as
collateral for the VIEs' debt) included on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet. The Company anticipates purchasing the facilities in the first
quarter of 2007,




Quarterly Review
MEDIA GENERAL, INC,

First Second Third Fourth
fUnaudited. in thousands, except par share amounts) Cuarter Quarter Quarter Quanter
2006
Revenues S 217,443 g 230,058 g 240,992 8 294,606
Operating income 18,669 32,474 25,453 64,883
Income from continuing operations 7.33¢ 18,262 7,744 32,057
Income {loss} from giscontinued operations (672) 1.8914 1,024 345
Net gain on sale of discontinuad aperations - - 11,802 (773)
Net income 6.667 20,176 20,570 31,629
Income per share from continuing operations .31 077 0.33 1.36
income per share from continuing operations - assuming dilution 0.31 0.77 0.33 1.35
Nel income per share 0.28 0.85 G.87 1.34
Net income per share - assuming dilution 0.28 0.85 0.87 1.33
Shares traded 6,434 9,135 10,118 7,690
Stock price range 8 46.17-53.00 $ 35.74-4774 $ 35.656-44.15 $ 33.80-38.79
Quarterly dividend paid $ 0.22 g 0.22 g 0.22 % 0.2z
2005
Revenues % 208,793 g 222,786 g 210,902 3 233,896
Operating income 21,302 35,240 21,480 45,580
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
change in acecounting principle 8,523 37,770 9,951 23,869
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (226} 615 (189) 1,098
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (325,453) - -

Net income (joss) (316,156) 38,385 9,762 24,967
Income per share from continuing operations before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 0.41 1.60 0.42 1.01
Income per share from continuing operations beforg cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle - assuming dilution 0.40 1.58 0.42 1.00
Net income (loss) per share (13.47) 1.63 0.41 1.06
Net income (loss) per share - assuming dilution {13.25) 1.61 0.1 1.05
Shares traded 4,170 6,758 6.566 6,235
Stock price range $ 60.41-66.20 $ 58.18-65.99 % 56.84-9.28 $ 48.95-59.55
Quarterty dividend paid 3 0.21 3 0.21 $ 0.21 3 0.21

* Media General, Inc., Class A “ommon stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MEG. The approximate number of equity security
holders of record at February 4, 2007, was: Class A common — 1,570, Class B common - 11.

Method to Value Acquired Assets Other Than Googwill




Five-Year Financial Summary
MEDIA GENERAL, INC,

Certain of the following data were compiled from the consolidated financial statements of Media Genreral, Inc., and should be read in conjunction with
those statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis which appear elsewhere in this report.

{in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Summary of Cperations
Operating revenues @ $ 983,189 $ 876,377 $ 859,516 $ 801,072 $ 791,515
Net income (loss) $ 79,042 $ (243,042) $ 80,185 $ 58685 $ (72.917)
Adjustments t¢ recencile to operating cash flow:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ™ - 325,453 - 8,079 126,336
Income from discontinued operations © {2.611) {1,298) {2,989) (2.459) (3,789)
Net gain on sales of certain CBS staticns © (11,029) - - - -
Gain on sale of investment in The Denver Post Corporation - (33.270) - - -
Gain on sale of MGFS © - - - {8.754) -
Investment {income) loss — unconsolidated affiliates (10.598) (1,119) (1,551) 4,672 14,129
Cther, net (323) (2,454) (7.477) (10.666) 115
Interest expense 48,505 29,408 31,082 34,424 47,874
Income taxes 38,493 49,934 45,338 33,922 32,376
Cperating income 141,479 123,612 144,588 118,803 144,124
Depreciation and amortization 71,096 61,971 60,408 59,830 60,191
Cperating cash flow $ 212575 § 185583 S5 204996 § 179733 3 204315
Per Share Data; @i«
Income from continuing operations 3 277 % 345 3 330 % 249 % 2186
income from discontinued operations Q.58 0.05 0.13 C.40 017
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - {13.83} - (0.35) (5.51)
Net income (loss} 3 3.35 $ (1033 S 343 % 254 $ (3.18)
Par Share Data - assuming dilution: ®®/
income from continuing operations 5 2.75 $ 340 % 325 % 246 $ 2.14
Income from discontinued operations 0.57 0.05 0.13 0.39 0.16
Cumulative effect of change in agcounting principle - {13.63} - (0.35) {5.44)
Net income (loss) 8 3.32 5 (10148 S 338 3 250 % (3.14)
Other Financial Data:
Total agsets = $ 2505228  $ 1975354 $ 2,480335  § 2498278 § 2,458,534
Working capital (excluding discentinued assets and liabilities) © 71,228 65,939 37,323 42,970 44,791
Capital expenditures 93,896 74,424 37,835 31,774 37,903
Total debt 916,320 485,304 533,280 627.289 642,937
Cash dividends per share 0.88 0.84 .80 0.76 072

B

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company acquired WNCN in Raleigh, North Caroling, WOMH in Columbus, Ohio, WJAR in Providence, Rhode Island and
WVTM in Birmingham, Alabama.

{b} Includes the recognition in the first quarter of 2005 of a charge, related to using the direct method to revalue FCC licenses, of $325.5 milicn (net of a tax
benefit of $190.7 million) as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle resulting from the adoption of EITF Topic D-108, Use of the Residual
Method to Value Acquired Assets Other Than Goodwill. Also includes the recognition in July of 2003 of a charge related to variable interest entities of $8.1
million {(net of a tax benefit of $3.4 millicn) as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle resulting from the adoption of FASB Interpretation 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. Also includes the recognition in January of 2002 of an impairment charge related to indefinite-lived intangibles of
$126.3 million (net of a tax benefit of $12.2 million) as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle resutting from the adoption of SFAS No. 142,
Gooawill and Other intangible Assets.

(c)

In the second hali of 2006, the Company sold KWCH in Wichita, Kansas {including that station's three satelites); WIAT in Birmingham, Alabama; WDEF in
Chattanooga, Tennessee; and KIMT in Mason, lowa. The Company reported a net gain of $11 million (net of income taxes of $6.7 million). In October 2003,
the Company sold Media General Financial Services and reported a gain of $6.8 millicn {net of income taxes of $3.9 million). All pricr periods have been
restated to reflect these items as discontinued operations {net of taxes).

{d} Upon adoption of FASB Interpretation 46 in July 2003, the Company added $86 miliion of assets (primarily buildings) and $94 million of liabiities (primarily
debt) related to ViEs.
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Corporate Information

Form 10-K And Other Filings

The Company posts all its SEC filings to its Web site, Stockholders
who would like a copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or its
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, may obtain either or both
from the corporate Web site or by contacting:

Corporate Communications

Media General, Inc.

P.C. Box 85333

Richmond, Va. 23293-0001
(804) 849-6059
etucker@mediageneral. com
www.mediageneral.com

Certifications

The Company has filed the required certifications as exhibits to its
Form 10-K, Additionally, the Chief Executive Officer has provided
the annual certification to the New York Stock Exchange.

Annual Meeting

Stockholders of Media General, Inc., are invited to attend the
Annual Meeting on April 26, 2007, at 11:00 a.m. at the Richmond
Newspapers Production Facility, 8460 Times-Dispatch Blvd,,
Mechanicsville, Va.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
Comorate Trust Department

6201 Fifteenth Ave.

Brooklyn, N.Y. 11219

(B00) 937-5449

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Media General Class A stockholders receive a 5 percent discount
from the market price when they reinvest their dividends ir
additional Media General shares, Participants in the Plan also may
make optional cash purchases of Class A common stock at markei
price and pay no brokerage commissions. To obtain the Plan
prospectus and enrollment card, write or call the transfer agent.
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